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Introduction

The Group jn brjef

AS Vnsnurk is engaged in the retail trade of furniture and household furnishings as well as manufacture of furniture
and building materials.

The business units of AS Vusnurk include the furniture division and building materials division.

The furniture division contains furniture store chain named Skano operating in Ukraine and the Baltic States, and a
factory manufacturing unique household ftirniture.

The building materials division manufactures and distributes two softboard-based product categories: insulation and
soundproofing boards as well as interior finishing boards for walls and ceilings.

The Company’s key markets are Scandinavia, Russia, Ukraine and the Baltic States. The customers and cooperation
partners of AS Viisnurk are accomplished representatives in their field who have long-term relations with the
Company.

From 5 June 199 AS \tisnurk is listed on the Tallinn Stock Exchange. On 19 September 200, division of AS
Vusnurk took place and the shares of the manufacturing entity that was spun off were relisted in the Main List of
Tallinn Stock Exchange pursuant to the resolution of the Listing Committee of the Tallinn Stock Exchange on 20
September 2007, and trading of the shares of AS Viisnurk was launched on 25 September 2007. The majority owner of
AS Viisnurk is OU Trigon Wood.

During the restructuring of the majority owner of OU Trigon Wood, TDI Investments Ky in October-November
2009, the ownership interest in OU Trigon Wood TDI Investments Ky was divided between the Scandinavian
investors.

As at 31.12.2009, the largest owners of OU Trigon Wood and the entities with significant influence over the Group
are. AS Tngon Capital (20.75°), Veikko Lame Ov (15.52%), BCB Baltic AB (14.07%), Hermitage Eesti OU (11.94%),
Thominvest Oy (11.94%) and Assetman Oy (ll.45%).
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Management report

Overview of operatng results

Revenue and operating results

In 2009, the revenue of AS Viisnurk totalled 205.8 million kroons (13.2 million euros) and in 2008, 280.5 million
kroons (17.9 million euros). In 2009, the net profit of AS Vusnurk amounted to 0.2 million kroons (0.01 million euros).
As a coinpanson, the net profit in 2008 totalled 6.0 million kroons (0.4 million euros). In 2009, the earnings per share
of Viisnurk were 0.03 kroons (0.002 euros) and in 2008, 1.34 kroons (0.09 euros).

The distribution of revenue and operating results of the Group by activities:
1d(K ‘00() REVENUE OPERATING RESULTS

2009 2008 2007 2006 2009 2008 2007 2006

Furniture factory 107 142 144 660 128 211 127 258 6870 7743 3589 2 866

Skano 32895 40064 22514 11 348 (5334 (5161) (1 090) 951

Building materials division 80576 116 166 112896 94581 1 224 8 671 13 892 11 674

Fliminations (14 823) (21) 362) (14099) (6 319) 17 (83) (442)

TOTAL 205 790 280 527 249 522 226 868 2777 11170 15 949 15 491

itnance income and expense (2 553) (3 454) (2 817) (2 536)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 224 7716 13132 12 955

Corporate income tax (69) (1 674) (475) (438)

NET PROFIT 155 6042 12 657 12 517

€ REVENUE OPERATING RESULTS

2009 2008 2007 2006 2009 2008 2007 2006

Furniture faetory 6848 9245 8 194 8 133 439 495 229 183

Skano 2102 2561 1 439 725 (341) (330 (70 61

Building materials division 5 150 7 424 7 215 6(145 78 554 888 746

l(liminaiions (948) (1 301) (901) (403) 1 (5) (28) -

TOTAL 13 152 17 929 15 947 14500 177 714 1019 990

Finance income and costs (163) (221) (180 (162)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 14 493 839 828

Corporate income tax (4) (107) (30) (28)

NET PROFIT 10 386 809 800

Group’s revenue by geographical markets:

1(l(K ‘001) € ‘00)) ° ot sales

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 20)18

Finland 88653 117 253 5666 7494 43.1% 41.8°o

Russia 39219 63267 2506 4044 19.1°o 226°o

I stonia 37800 53 11(1 2417 3394 18.4% 18.9°

Lkraine 10751 10 831 656 692 5.2% 3.9°o

Lihuania 8 308 9 116 531 583 4.0°o 3.2°

Latvja 6931) 12026 443 769 3.4% 4.3°o

Sweden 4047 51(44 259 322 2.0% 1.9%

Kazakhstan 3476 3 998 222 255 1.7% 1.4%

(;emiany 2300 3962 147 253 1.1% 1.4%

Porwgal 2 140 954 137 61 1.0% 0.3%

Other countries 2 166 966 138 62 1.0% 0.3%

TOTAL 205 790 280 527 13 152 17 929 100.0% 100.0%



The share of Finland and Ukraine has increased the most and that of Russia and Latvia has decreased the most in the
Group’s total sales. The share of Finland has increased the most and that of Russia has decreased the most due to the
change in the share of the furniture factory. Ukraine and Latvia have been impacted primarily by the changes in the
sales of retail chain Skano.

Statement of financial position and cash flow statement

.\s at 31.12.2009, the total assets of AS Viisnurk amounted to 132.8 million kroons (8.5 million euros). As at
3 1.12.2008, the total assets amounted to 163.8 million kroons (10.5 million euros). The balance sheet total decreased by
31.0 million kroons (2.0 million euros). As at 31.12.2009, the Company’s liabilities were 61.3 million kroons (3.9 million
euros) (31.12.2008: 92.6 million kroons (5.9 million euros)) and the Company’s debt-to-equity ratio decreased from
5’° to 46°

In 2009, the Company’s cash flows from operating activities totalled 132 million kroons (0.9 million euros) (2008: 18.1
million kroons (1.2 million euros)). Investments in non-current assets totalled 1.4 million kroons (0.1 million euros)
(2008: 11.2 million kroons (0.7 million euros)).

Performance of business units

Furniture division

The furniture division is focused on manufacturing and distribution of wooden household furniture. The furniture
division manufactures furniture for living rooms, offices, dining rooms as well as bedrooms. The retail brand of the
division is Skano and there are nine furniture showrooms bearing this name: two in Estonia, one in Latvia, three in
Lithuania and three in Ukraine.

Retail business

Greater emphasis was laid on the development of furniture retail sales. The wholly—owned subsidiary of AS Viisnurk,
OI.J Skano has been set up to focus on the retail business. The wholly-owned subsidiaries of OU Skano, SIA Skano,
U.\B Skano LI, and TOV Skano Ukraine operate in Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine, respectively.

Retail sales by countries:

I 0 K ‘000 € ‘01 (1 “ oof saics N umbcr of storcs

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 31 1209 31 1208

I’stonia 9 608 14 155 614 905 29.3% 35.3° 2 2
larvia 4 807 9 021 307 577 14.6% 22.5° 1 1

jihuana 7 974 8 514 510 544 24.2% 21.3” o 3 3

8 374 671 535 31.9% 209”,, 3 4I kran 10 506

TOTAL 32895 40 064 2 102 2 561 lOOO/o 100.0% 9 10

Due to weakening of demand in target markets, no new showrooms are planned to be opened in 2010. However, if
possible, the existing showrooms will be relocated to more attractive venues.

In the financial year, the sales of subsidiaries operating under Skano name and focusing on the retail business decreased
by 18° s. In 2008, the sales of subsidiaries increased by 78%.

Furniture production

In 2009, the focus continued to lie on the profitable product portfolio, increasing the production efficiency and
opumizing cost levels.

In the accounting period, the furniture factory focused on production of lugher-margin furniture made of birch wood.
Market demand for pine furniture has been declining and the Company has shut down the production of pine
furniture.

The target customers of the furniture factory are primarily medium and small-sized furniture wholesalers and retailers
who value the unique design and high quality of furniture as well as flexible customer service.

The search for new subcontracted series has been completed.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 AS VISNURK (TRANSLATION OF THE ESTONIAN OROSINAL) 5



Mpgppwpt report

ihe sales of the furniture factory by countries

FEK ‘00)) € ‘00)) °of saks

2009 2008 20(19 2008 2009 2008

Finland 51 787 58 310 3 310 3 727 48.4% 40.3%

Russia 34 050 57 231 2 176 3 658 31.8° 39.6”

Kasakhstan 3 476 3 998 222 255 3.2% 2.8°

(ernunv 1 444 2 775 92 177 1.3% 1.9°o

l:s,onia 1 231 1 767 80 113 1.1° 1.2°

( )thcr countries 540 217 34 14 0.5% (L2%

Subsidiaries 14 614 20 362 934 1 301 13.7% 14.0%

TOTAL 107 142 144 660 6 848 9 245 100.0% 100.0%

Building materials division

The building materials division produces two separate softboard-based product categories: insulation and
soundproofing boards as well as interior fmishing boards for walls and ceilings.

Division’s operating results

In 2009, the building material division’s sales were 80.4 million kroons (5.1 million euros) and the net profit of the
division amounted to 1.2 million kroons (0.1 milhon euros). In 2008, the sales were 116.2 million kroons (7.4 million
euros) and the net profit was 8.7 million kroons (0.6 million euros).

Exports made up 66° o of the division’s total sales (2008: 680/0), the largest export markets were Finland, Russia and
Sweden.

The sales of the building materials division by countries:

1/1 K ‘00( ) € ‘000 ° of sales

2009 20)18 2009 2008 201)9 2008

liniand 36866 58943 2356 3767 45.8% 50.7%

26961 37 381 1 723 2 389 33.5% 32,2”

Russia 5 169 6036 330 386 6.4°o

Sweden 4047 5044 259 322 5.0% 4.3”,,

Portugal 2 140 954 137 61 2.7% 0.8%

2 123 2 812 136 180 26% 2.4%

Gemuny 856 1187 55 76 1.0%

1 uhuania 334 602 21 38 0.4°o

l’kraine 245 2457 15 157 0.3°o 2.1”

tither countries 1 626 749 104 48 2.0°o

Subsidianes 209 1 14 1) 0.3% 1.0°

TOTAL 80 576 116 165 5 150 7 424 100.0% 100.0%

Interior finishing boards

Intenor finishing hoards are produced under Isotex brand, wholly owned by the Group. Interior finishing boards are
made of natural softboard which is produced on the factory’s main production line and the boards have milled tenons
and the surface is covered with paper or textile. This technology enables to produce boards of different colours and
patterns.

In 2009, the revenue of interior finishing boards totalled 29 million kroons (1.9 million euros) (2008: 37 million kroons
(2.4 million euros)). As compared with the previous year, the revenue decreased 2l°/o. Interior finishing boards made
up 36°/o (2008: 32%) of the division’s total sales. The largest market for interior finishing boards continued to be
Finland.

Due to the overall decline of the construction market, sales declined in all major markets at the year-end.



ntr

General construction boards

As compared with the previous year, the sales of insulation and soundproofing boards decreased by 35%, reaching 51.3
million kroons (3.3 million euros) (2008: 78.9 million kroons (5.0 million euros)). Wind-protection boards continue to
be the largest product group.

In 2009, the Company started to manufacture Isomodul boards. Isomodul represents thicker general construction
boards with phased edges. Isomodul woodfibre-isolation elements made solely of wood are appropriate for eco
friendly buildings: they are open to diffusion while having excellent heat isolating features, and they can be used for
ceilings and floors to balance heights and add mass.

Due to the simple edge profile form of Isomodul woodfibre isolation elements, this building material can be used in
most diverse areas as a soundproofing and heat isolation material — for example, for muffling walking related noise
when building floors, as a wall, ceiling or roof isolation matenal, or interior and exterior coating of wood framed
buildings.

nvestments

\Vith regard to the retail business of the furniture division, the activities to expand the retail business in the
neighbouring markets have been halted. The expansion of the retail business involves the opening of new stores
offering household furniture and furnishings in different markets of Eastern Europe.

In 20(39, investments in machinery and equipment totalled 4.8 million kroons (0.3 million euros) and in buildings, 0.3
million kroons (0.02 million euros). In 2008, investments into machinery and equipment totalled 8.5 million kroons
(0.5 million euros) and into buildings, 2.7 million kroons (0.2 million euros).

Forecast and dev&opment

According to preliminary plans for the year 2010, no new Skano retail chain showrooms will be opened, as in the
conditions of a cooling economy, the Company wants to minimise the risks related to expansion and maintain
sufficient liquidity. However, management may consider opening new stores if the location or rental terms are
favourable. In 2009, a store was closed in Odessa, Ukraine and in February 2010, a new store was opened in Kiev.

For the year 2010, we forecast continuation of lower retail sales and lower sales in those markets where AS Vi murk is
not engaged in retail trade and therefore, also continuously lower production of the furniture factory. Agreements have
been reached with employees in respect of shorter working hours until 31.03.2010. The Company will extend the
agreement regarding the use of shorter working hours until 31.03.2011.

Due to the unfavourable economic climate in the primary target markets and low demand for building materials, the
production will continue at reduced capacity. In the main production line, three shifts will be used instead of the
former four shifts.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 AS ViISNURK (TRANSLATION OF THE ESTONIAN ORIGINAL) 7



ManaqernonL report

F nployees

()rganisationai chart of ‘iS \ usnurk as at 31.1 2.2(X)

Ihe chart does not indude OL Isotex and OU Visu because these entities did not has c any operations in the Onancial sear.

In 2009, the average number of employees of the Group was 326 (2008: 350). By the end of 2009, AS Viisnurk
employed 2’0 employees (2008: 310). As at 31.12.2009, the Group including the subsidiaries employed 30’ people
(2008: 354). At the end of the financial year, the Group employed 222 workers and 85 specialists and executives (2008:
259 and 95, respectively). The average age of the Company’s employees was 45.’ years (2008: 44.5).

In 2009, employee wages and salaries totalled 36.9 million kroons (2.4 million euros) (2008: 52.4 million kroons (3.3
million euros)). Compared with the previous financial year, the Company’s payroll expenses decreased by 29.5° o. In
2009, gross remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board totalled 2.2 million kroons (142 thousand
euros) (2008: 2.6 million kroons (169 thousand euros)). The members of the Supervisory Board neither received any
remuneration in 2009 nor in 2008.

Ilie distribution of the number of employees of AS Viisnurk by units (as at 31.12):

2009 2008 Change %
Budding rnatrrlals disision 72 82 (12.2°o)
lurnituru tactorv 198 228 (132°u)
(It Skano 12 11 9.1°
S1.\ Skano 3 7 (571°s)
I ‘ill Skano 1 6 10 (4)’ o)

1 ()\ Skano tkrainc 16 16 0°
1’() 1\1 Group 307 354 (13.3%)

8



Financial ratios

IJK Y)()O 2009 2008 2007 2006

* The figures per share arc not shown for 2006 due to the absence of comparative information.— due to the dn’ision, the shares of AS Viisnurk have
been hstird on the ‘I’ailinn Stock Exchange since 25 September 2007.

EBITDA operating profit + depreciation
EBITD\ margin = EBITDA / revenue

Operating margin operating profit / revenue
Net margin = net profit / revenue

Return on total assets = net profit / total assets
Return on equity = net profit / equity
Debt ratio = liabilities / total assets
Earnings per share net proflt/ number of shares
Price/earnings (PE) ratio = closing price of share / earmngs per share
Book value of share equity / number of shares
Market to book value = closing price of share / book value of share
Market capitalisation closing pnce of share number of shares

Income statement

Revenue 205 790 280 527 249 522 226 868

EBITI).\ 10 220 19 721 24 827 26 087
Chill) \ margin 5.0% 7.0° 99° 11.5”
Operating profit 2777 11 170 15 949 15 491
( )perating margin l.3% 4.0° 6.4°c 6.8°
Neiprotit 155 6042 12657 12517
Net minim 0.1% 2.2° 5.1° 5.5%

Balance sheet

lotal assets 132 803 163 824 157 447 144 132
Return on total assets 0.1% 37°o 8.0°,, 8.7°
I:quu 71 508 71 200 71 243 66 043

Retum on equity 0.2% 8.5° 17.8° 19.0°
l)ebto—equitv ratio 46.2% 57°,, 55”,, 54”,,

Share (31.12)

Closing pnce0 11.27 12.20 28.95 -

Eamings per share 0.03 1.34 2,81 2.78
Price/earnings (P/C) ratio” 375.67 9.09 10.30 -

Hook value of share 15.89 15.83 15.84 14.68
\ arket to ho, ,k ratio” 0.71 .77 1.83 —

Market eapiralisation 50 704 54 908 130 228 -

(is,, 2009 2(5)8 2007 2006
Income statement

Revenue 13 152 17 929 15 947 14 50))

EBI’l’DA 652 1 261 1 587 1 667
EBITDA margin 5.0% 7.0”4 9.9” 11.5%
Operating profit 177 74 i 019 990
Operating margin . 0 4,0 6.4 o 6.8
\ct profir 10 386 809 ((00
Net margin 0 2.2 o n.j 0

Balance sheet

l’otal assets 8 488 10 468 10 063 9 212
job!Retum on ital assets . 0 3,7 8.0 8.7

Equity 4 570 4 548 4 553 4 221
Retum (in equity 0.2% 8.5°, 17.8” 19.0”
Debt-to-equity ratio 46.2% 57”o 55%

Share (3112)

(losing price’ 0.72 0.78 1.85

I amings per share 0.002 .09 (t. 18
Pneeir&rnings (P/C) ratio’ 375.67 9.09 10.30
Book value of share 1.02 1.01 1.01
Market to book ratio 0.71 0.77 1.83
Market capitalisation° 3 239 3 509 8 323

0.11)

0.94
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Share

Share price

The shares of AS Viisnurk started to be traded in the Main List of the Tallinn Stock Exchange as at 25 September 2007.

The opening price in 2009 was 12.83 kroons (0.82 euros). The highest price of the year was 16.12 kroons (1.03 euros)
and the lowest price 6.88 kroons (0.44 euros). The closing price in 2009 was 11.27 kroons (0.72 euros). A total of
1,281,969 shares were traded in 2009 and the total sales amounted to 12.44 million kroons (0.79 million euros).

The opening price in 2008 was 29.57 kroons (1.89 euros). The highest price of the year was 29.89 kroons (1.91 euros)
and the lowest price was 10.f’ kroons (0.65 euros). The closing price in 2008 was 12.20 kroons (0.78 euros). A total of
201 513 shares were traded in 2008 and the total sales amounted to 4.5 million kroons (0.29 million euros).

The opening price in 2007 was 59.14 kroons (3.78 euros). The highest price of the year was 63.68 kroons (4.07 euros)
and the lowest price was 25.97 kroons (1.66 euros). The closing price in 2007 was 28.95 kroons (1.85 euros). A total of
201 546 shares were traded in 2007 and the total sales amounted to 8.15 million kroons (0.52 million euros).

The following table provides an overview of the movements in the share price of AS Viisnurk and the daily trading
volumes on the Tallinn Stock Exchange (ERK) in 2008 and 2009.

30.00

2500

2000 k

1500

1000
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01.01.2008 01.01.2009
1500.0

1000.0

500.0

0.0

Shareholders

The distribution of share capital by the number of shares acquired as at 31.12.2009:
Number of shareholders ‘0, of shareholders Number of shares % of share capital

I - 99 88 16.2% 2 708 0.06°
100 999 213 39.3” 81 561 1.81’’,
I 000

- 9 99’) 210 38.7°c, 541 233 12.03”,,
10 sit — 99 999 29 5.4° o 691 367 15.37
It 050 90’) 999 1 0.2° 500 000 11 11°
1 itO till)

- 9 99) 999 1 0.2°,, 2 682 192 59.62
Total 542 100°,, 4 499 061 100.) 0°,,

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 AS VIISNURK (TRANSLATION OF THE ESTONIAN ORIGINAL) 10



Manaqement report

List of shareholders with ownership over 1% as at 31.12.2009:
Sharohilder Number o shares Ownership 00

01. 1 bi( ON (j( )O1) 2 682 192 n9 62
I N( I ,UXl MB( )UR( S.A. 500 (XX) 1111
Skandinaviska Cnskilda Banken Onnish Clients 93 834 2.09
Vip Invest OP 75 100 1.67
Toivo Kuldmie 49 231 1.09

Direct ownership of the members of the Management and Supervisory Boards as at 31.12.2009:

Lb :\damson — does not own any shares
joakimJohan Helenius — 20 000 shares 0.44%
1-leiri Riisberg — does not own any shares
Andres Kivistik — does not own any shares
Einar Pähkel — does not own any shares

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of .-\S Viisnurk Group arises from possible changes in EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered Rate)
as most of the Group’s loans are tied to EURIBOR. As at 31.12.09, the 6-month EURIBOR was 0.994 and as at
31.12.08, 2.971.

interest rate risk also depends on Estonia’s overall economic situation and the changes in the banks’ average interest
rates, The Company has cash flow risk arising from changes in interest rates because most of the Company’s loans
have floating interest rates. Management estimates that the cash flow risk is not material; therefore, no financial
instruments are used to hedge nsks.

Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk is the Company’s risk to mcur major losses due to fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. Currency risk is related to the change in the number of Skano stores and their sales, due to the use of local
currencies in target markets. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries located outside Estonia are primarily exposed
to this risk. The foreign currency exchange risk for AS Viisnurk is very low because most of the export-import
agreements have been concluded in euros.

Risk of the economic environment

The risk of the economic environment in the building materials division depends on the overall trends in the
construction market and in the furniture division, on the future expectations of the consumers with regard to
economic welfare. Due to the latest developments in the global markets, the risk of the economic environment has
significantly increased.

Fair value

The fair values of cash, accounts receivable, short-term loans and borrowings do not significantly differ from their
book values. The fair values of long-term loans and borrowings do not significantly differ from their book values
because their interest rates mostly correspond to the interest rates prevailing in the market.

Group structure

Shares of subsidiaries:
OP Skano OP Visu OP tsotcx 51,1. Skano CAB Skano ‘I’OV Skano

1.1, Pkraina
Domieik’ (Estonsa (Estonia) (1istonia (Latvia (I .ithuania) (Ukrne)
Number of shares at 31.12.2008 (pcs) I 1 1 1 100 1
)wnership 0 o 31.12.2008 100 100 1(1(1 1(1(1 100 100

Number of shares at 31.12.2009 (pcs) 1 1 1 1 100 1
Ownership”o 31.12.2009 lOU 100 100 100 100 100

AS 3’\JSK 3,( HiE ESTON AN OR.GNAL 11



Skano CC is engaged in retail sales in Estoma, owning two furniture showrooms — in jàrve Keskus, Tallinn and on the
ground floor of the head office of AS Vusnurk, Pärnu. Skano QU owns 100% of the entities Skano SIA, UAB Skano
LT and TOV Skano Ukraina.

SL\ Skano launched its operations in \ovember 2005 and it is involved in furniture retail sales in Latvia, owning one
showroom in Riga. UAB Skano LT launched its operations in April 2007 and is involved in retail sales in Lithuania,
owning furniture showrooms in Klaipeda, Kaunas and Vilnius. TOV Skano Ukraina launched its operations in Ukraine
in June 20W’ and is involved in furniture retail sales, owning furniture showrooms in Kharkov, Kiev and Donetsk.

The goal of setting up Visu Ot and Isotex CU was to enable the former divisions to operate independently under
their own brands and to foster the development of their business units. In conjunction with the implementation of the
Company’s tcstrucrunng plan, the subsidianes are no longer used. The subsidiaries Visu CU and Isotex CU did not
have any operating activities in 2008 and 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 AS VHSNURK (TRANSLAT)ON OF THE ESTONIAN ORIGINAL) 12



Manaqement report

Corpo rate Governance Recommendations Report

The Corporate Governance Recommendations is a set of guidelines and recommended rules to be carried our primarily
by entities whose shares have been admitted to trading on a regulated market in Estonia. From 1 January 2006, the
listed entities are required to follow the principle “Comply or Explain”.

The Corporate Governance Recommendations lay down the principles of calling and conducting general meetings of
shareholders, composition, activities and responsibilities of supervisory and management boards, disclosures and
financial reporting.

As the principles outlined in the Recommendations are recommended, the Company does not have to comply with all
of them but needs to explain in the Corporate Governance Recommendations Report why these requirements are not
complied with.

In its business, AS Viisnurk adheres to prevailing laws and legislative provisions. As a public entity, AS Viisnurk also
follows the requirements of the Tallinn Stock Exchange and the principles of equal treatment of shareholders and
Investors. Pursuant to this, the Company follows most of the guidelines set Out in the Recommendations. Below are
arguments for noncompliance of the Recommendations that the Company does not comply with.

Clause 1.3.1 The chairman of the Superviso Board and a member of the Manaement Board shall not be elected as the Chair of the
General Meeting

The Chairman of the Management Board, Andres Kivistik was elected as the Chair of the General Meeting of
Shareholders at 5 June 2009. He ensured a smooth running of the General Meeting in the Estonian language taking
into account the interests of all shareholders. All shareholders present at the meeting agreed with the election of
Andres Kivisnk as the Chair of the General Meeting.

Clause 1.3.2 .‘ilembers of the Mancgement Board, the Chairman of the Superviso Board and fpossible, all members of the Sienoso!)’
Board and at least one of the auditors shallpa#ic7ate in the General Meetin.

All members of the Management Board were present at the General Meeting of Shareholders at 5 June 2009. The
Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the auditor were not present at the meeting. The auditor was not present at the
meeting because the Management Board did not consider the auditor’s participation necessary as there were not any
issues on the agenda that might have needed the auditor’s comments.

Clause 1.3.3 Issuerc shall make participation in the General Meetin& possible by means of communication equlment (‘Internet,) f the
technical equipment is available and where doinll so is not too cost prohibitive to the Issuer.

The Issuer did not make monitoring and participation in the General Meeting possible by means of communication
equipment, because no technical equipment was available.

Clause 2.2.’ Basic wages, perfbrmance pay, termination benefits, otherpqyable benefits and bonus schemes ofa member of the Mana,gement
Board as well as their essential .liatitres ‘incL Jiatures based on comparlcon, incentives and risk,) shall be published in a clear and
einam/figuous!brm on the website of the Issuer and in the Coeporate Governance Recommendations Rspori In/rmation published shall be
deemed clear and unambiguous if it directly e.’.presses the amount of e.\pense to the Issuer or the amount ofj9reseeable e.pense as at the day

disclosure.

The Issuer shall not disclose the remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board by person because the
Issuer considers this information sensitive to a member of the Management Board and invasion of his privacy. Its
disclosure is not necessary for making a statement of the management quality of the Issuer and it will harm the
competitive position of the Issuer and the members of the Management Board. Thus, the Issuer has decided not to
disclose the remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board. In 2009, the gross remuneration paid to the
members of the Company’s Management Board totalled 2,225 thousand kroons (142 thousand euros). As at
31.12.2009, pursuant to the contracts entered into, termination benefits totalling 4-month remuneration are payable to
the members of the Management Board.

Clause 2.3.2 The Seeperviso Board shall decide significant transactions of the Issuer and a member of its Manqgement Board or close
relative or a related person and shall decide the terms of such transactions. The transactions approved b3 the Superviso,y Board and
conducted between a member of the Manallement Board its close relative or a related person and the Issuer shall he published in the
Coeporate Governance Recommendations ReporL
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There hare not been any transactions between the Issuer and a member of its Management Board or a close relative or
a related person.

Clause 3.2.2 Al /east halfof the members of the Superviso Board of the Issuer shall be independent.

The Supervisory Board currently consists of three members, none of whom can be considered independent under the
Recommendations. Ulo Adamson and Joakim Johan Helenius are members of the Management Board of the
shareholder OU Trigon Wood controlling the Issuer. Heai Riisberg is not independent under the Recommendations
because he works at AS Trigon Capital and he reports to the other members of the Supervisory Board. However, the
Issuer is convinced that the experience and knowledge of the aforementioned persons shall ensure effective and
profitable management of the Issuer and thus take account of the interests of shareholders in every aspect.

Clause 3.2.5 The amount of remuneration of a member of the Sierviso Board appointed at the meetin,g and the procedure for his
payment shall he published in the Coiporate Governance Recommendations Report, oiitlinug separate/y basic and additional remuneration
(md. termination and otherpa3.’ahle benefits,).

The Issuer does not pay any remuneration to the members of the Supervisory Board.

Clause 3.2.6 I/a member of the .ciepeniisomy Board has attended jiwer than a half of the meetings of the Supervisoiy Board, this shall be
indicated separately in the Coiporate Governance Recommendations Report

All members of the Supervisory Board have participated in more than half of the meetings of the Supervisory Board.

Clause 3.3.2 Be,fbre his election, a member candidate of the Supervisoi Board shall not/ji other members of the Supervisory Board of an
existence of a conflict of interest, f it arises after the election, he shall immediateiy notfl of it. A member of the Supervisory Board shall
immediately noti/j the C½airman of the Supervisoi Board and the Manallement Board of a business proposal made to a member of the
.Supervisoty Board, his close relative or a relatedperson.

The members of the Supervisory Board hare not notified the Issuer of any conflicts of interest by the time of
preparing the 2009 annual report.

Clause 5.2 The Issuer shallpublish the disclosure dates of in/brmation subftct to disclosure throu,ghout the year at the beginnin.g of the fiscal
)sar in a separate notice, called a Jinancial calenda,

The Issuer did not disclose a separate notice but information subject to disclosure was made public no later than at the
dates set out in the law.

Clause 5.6 The Issuer shall disclose the dates and places of meetin,gs with ana/ysts and presentations and press conferences orllanizedfor
analysts, investors or institutional investors on its website.

According to the rules and regulations of the Tallinn Stock Exchange, the Group shall disclose all relevant information
through the stock exchange. Meetings with analysts and press conferences are limited to the information made public
earlier. The Group does not deem it necessary to make the schedule of meetings public.

The activities of the Issuer comply with the requirements of the Recommendations in all other aspects.
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Since 2004, both the furniture and building materials divisions hold integrated termless environmental permits which
are required by the Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control Act. Adherence to the requirements of the permits
ensures that production activity has a minimal impact on the environment. The requirements set out in the integrated
permit ensure the protection of water, air and soil, and the management of generated waste in an environmentally
sustainable manner.

‘To meet the requirements of the Packaging Act, in 2005 the Company entered into a contract with the Estonian
Recovery Organisation (ERO). Under the contract, all responsibilities of AS Viisnurk related to packaging collection,
recovery and related reporting were transferred to ERO. The contract ensures that all end consumers may return the
packaging free of charge to containers bearing the Green Point sign. To foster the sales in the German speaking
markets, a contract was also entered into with the German packaging recovery organisation ISD Interseroh GmbI I,
which ensures that all packaging taken to the German market is duly collected and recovered.

In 2008, the share of water based finishing materials was significantly increased in the furniture division and thereby,
the use of solvent based materials and emissions of volatile organic compounds was reduced to the total permitted
emissions figure.

Water usage
In thousands of’ 2009 2008 Change %

\Xatcr usc: 48.5 89.4 (84.3°o)
groundss atcr Qnunicipal v atcr 4.5 6.9 (53.3° o)
groUnds ater own borc wclls) 15.2 18.9 (24.3° )
surfacc ‘aatcr 28.8 63.6 (120.8° o)

\vatLr dischargc: 23.2 56.3 (142.7” o)
conditionalb ck an s; astc\ atcr 7.2 16.8 (133.3° o)
w istcwatcr 16,0 39.5 (146.9° o)

\Xaicr loss 25.3 33.1 (3(1.8°)

Water use and wastewater discharge
2009 2008 2009 2008 Change %

EEK 000 L.CK ‘000 C ‘000 C ‘000
Watcr usc: 70.2 126.4 4.4 8.1 (80.1%)

groundsvatcr (municipal watcr) 48.5 67.4 3.1 4.3 39.0%)
groundwatcr (own borc wclls) 13.1 41.8 0.8 2.7 219.1%)
surfacc watcr 8.6 17.2 0.5 1.1 (100.0%)

\Vater dischargc: 907.0 1 434.1 58.0 91.7 (58.1%)
wasti.watcr 907.0 1434.1 58.0 91.7 (58.1%)

‘1 otal cxpcnscs 977.2 1 560.5 62.4 99.8 (59.7%)

Salcs of surfaci. watcr and groundss atcr 10.2 0 0.7 0 100.0%
‘lotal conditional incon’ic 10.2 0 0.7 0 100.0%

Main pollutants
In Ions 2009 2008 Change %

\olatili. organic compounds 17.6 60.3 (242.6° s)
( )rganic dust 2.2 3.4 (54.5° s)
l’otal 19.8 63.7 (221.7° o)

Waste handling
2009 2008 2009 2008 Change %

IthK ‘000 LLK ‘000 C ‘000 C ‘000
llandhng of hazardous \sastc 149.6 153.2 9.6 9.8 (2.4°o)
I landling of non hazardous waste 404.4 542.3 25.8 34.7 (34.1°
I ical cxpcnscs 554.0 695.5 35.4 44.5 (25.5° o)

Rccs cling of ss asic in thc production of
heat cncrlv 376.2 519.3 24.0 33.2 (38.0° s)
Sah, s of wood ss aste 27.7 60.6 1.8 3.9 (118.8° s
Sales of mctal astc 19.8 102.0 1.3 6.5 (415.2°s)
‘I otal conditional incomc 423.7 681.9 27.1 43.6 (60.9° )
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Management Board’s confirmation of the management report

The Management Board confirms that the management report of AS VIisnurk Group set out on pages 4- 15 presents a
true and fair view of the development and results as well as the financial position of the parent and the entities included
for consolidation purposes, and includes a description of the major risks and uncertainties.

)

Andres Kiist ain of the Management Board

Einar Pählcel Member of the Management Board

Pärnu, 6 Apdi 2010
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Financia’ statements

Management Board’s confirmation

The Management Board confirms the correctness and completeness of the consolidated financial statements of
AS Viisnurk Group for the year 2009 as presented on pages 17 52 The Management Board confirms that;

the accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are in compliance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted in the European Umon

the consolidated financial statements present a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of the
operations and the cash flows of the Group;

- AS Viisnurk and its subsidiaries are going concerns.

/ 7
4-

Andres Kivistik Einar Pahkel

Chairman of the Management Board Member of the Management Board

Pärnu, 6 April 2010
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C n,ol ci ted Ii anci s ats. nents

3tat r er t hr £ posrbon

31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31 .12.2008
EEK ‘000 EEK 000 ‘000 € ‘000

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 6091 6 913 389 442
Receivables and prepayments (Notes 3; 5) 18 810 19 568 1 202 1 250
Inventories (Note 6) 41 912 68 096 2 680 4 351

Total current assets 66 813 94 577 4 271 6 043

lnestment propert) (Note 7) 2893 2 893 185 185
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 63 083 66 333 4 031 4 239
Intangible assets (Note 9) 14 21 1 1

Total non-current assets 65 990 69 247 4217 4 425

TOTAL ASSETS 132 803 163 824 8 488 10 468

borrowings (Notes 3; 10) 8 048 17 722 514 1132
Payables and prepayments (Notes 3; 12 22 742 43 646 1 454 2 790
Short term provisions (Note 13) 118 115 8 7

Total current liabilities 30 908 61 483 1 976 3 929

Long term borrowings (Notes 3; 10 27084 27 720 1 731 1 72
Long term provisions (Note 13) 3303 3421 211 219
Total non-current liabilities 30 387 31 141 1 942 1 991

Total liabilities 61 295 92 624 3 918 5 920

Share capital (at nominal value) (Note 14) 44991 44 991 2 875 2 875
Share premium 5 698 5 698 364 364
Statutory reserve capital 4 499 4 499 288 288
Currency translation differences 406 253 26 14
Retained earnings 15 914 15 759 1 017 1 007

Total equity (Note 14) 71 508 71 200 4 570 4 548

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 132 803 163 824 8 488 10468

The notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 — 52 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Co o ci tt ci t ancial sti ‘ ents

iso da d ‘Itdtment t.ornprhensive come

2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK vOO EEK vOO 6 000 6 00

restated restated
REVENUE (Note 25) 205 790 280 527 13 152 17 929

Cost of goods sold (Note 16) (163 337) (217 647) (10 439) (13 910)

Gross profit 42 453 62 880 2 713 4 019

Distribution COStS (Note 17) (33 433) (42 252) (2 137) (2 700
\dministrative expenses (Note 18) (5 462) (6 960) (349) (445)
Other operating income (Note 20) 532 690 34 44
Other operating expenses (Note 21) (1 313) (3 188) (84) (204)

Operating profit 2 777 11 170 177 714

binance income (Note 27) 9 32 1 2
linance costs (Note 22) (2 562) (3 491) (164) (223)

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 224 7716 14 493

Corporate income tax (Notes 14; 23) (69) (1 674) (4) (107)

NET PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 155 6042 10 386

Other cumpruhensivc incomu:
Currency translation differences 153 214 12 12

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 308 6256 22 398
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Basic earnings per share (Note 15) 0.03 1.34 0.00 0.09

Diluted earnings per share (Note 15) 0.03 1.34 0.00 0.09

The notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 — 52 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK ‘000 EEK ‘000 ‘ ‘000 ‘ ‘000

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 224 7 716 14 493

\djustments of profit before tax for the effects of non-
cash transactions, items of income or expense
associated with investing or financing cash flows and
changes in assets and liabilities related to operating
aetivitics (Note 24) 16509 15375 1 054 983

Cash generated from operations 16 733 23 091 1 068 1 476
Interest payments (‘Note 22) (2 512 (3 348) (160) (214)
Corporate income tax paid (Notes 14; 23) 69 (1 674) (4) (107)

Net cash generated from operating activities 14 152 18 069 904 1 155

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) (1 361) (11182) (87) (714)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0 182 0 11
Note 8)

Net cash used in investing activities (1 361) (11 000) (87) (703)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans (Note 10) 0 9 137 0 584
Repayment of loans (Note 10) (13 022) (8 589) (832) (549)
Finance lease payments (Note 10) (566) (622) (36) (39)
Pa’ment of dividends (Note 14) 0 (6 299) 0 (403)

Net cash used in financing activities (13 588) (6 373) (868) (407)

NET CHANGE IN CASH (797) 696 (51) 45
EXCHANGE GAINS/LOSSES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (25) 211 (2) 13

OPENING BALANCE OF CASH (Note 3) 6913 6006 442 384
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH (Note 3) 6 091 6913 389 442

The notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 — 52 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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o soh ii ci t atemer t o cJ ar ge n equity

Ihe notes to the financial statements presented on pages 22 — 52 are an integral part of these financial statements.

ut se id i a

c1

Vu p I ( to j<

I io dtfht C

fl ny

Currenc)
I I K 000 Share Statutory translation Retarned

Share capital premium reserve capital differences earnings lotaI

Balance at 31.12.2007 44 991 5 698 4 499 39 16 016 71 243

lotal compnhenso e income for 214
2008 0 0 0 fi 042 6 256
l5ament of doidends (\otc 14) 0 0 0 0 (6 299) (6 299)
Balance at 31.12.2008 44 991 5 698 4 499 253 15 759 71 200

lot 0 cismprehensi e income for
2009 0 0 0 153 155 308
Balance at 31.12.2009 44 991 5 698 4 499 406 15 914 71 508

Currency
translation
differences

0011 Share
prenaum

364

Statutorl
reserve caL

288Balance at 31.12.2007

I otal comprehenso e income for
2008

m lit of di idends (\otc 14)
Balance at 31.12.2008

lotal comprehenso e income for
2009
Balance at 31.12.2009

Share ct

2 875

0
0

2 875

0
2 875

Retained
earninJ_

1024

0
1)

364

0
364

1)
0

288

0
288

2

12

0
14

12
26

1 otal
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39$
(403)
4 548
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(403)
1 007
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General information

AS Viisnurk (the Company) (registration number: 11421437; address: Suur-JOe 48, Pämu is an entity registered in the
Republic of Estonia. It operates in Estonia and through its subsidiaries, in Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine. The
consolidated financial statements prepared for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 include the financial
information of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group): Skano 00, Visu 00, Isotex OU
and Skano OD’s wholly owned subsidiaries SL\ Skano; UAB Skano LT and TOV Skano Ukraina. The Group’s main
activities are production and distribution of furniture and softboard made of wood.

AS Viisnurk was established on 19 September 2007 in the demerger of the former AS Viisnurk, currently AS Trigon
Property Development, as a result of which to which the manufacturing units, i.e. the construction materials division
and furniture division were spun off and transferred to the new entity.

The Group’s shares are listed in the Main List of the Tallinn Stock Exchange. The majority owner of AS Viisnurk is
O0Trigon Wood. Until November 2009, the ultimate controlling party of AS Viisnurk was TDI Investments KY.
Since November 2009 when the ownership interest in 00 Trigon Wood was divided, the Group has no ultimate
controlling party, but the following investors with largest holdings in OU Trigon Wood have significant influence over
the Group as at 31 December 2009: AS Trigon Capital (20.75° o), Veikko Lame Oy (15.52° o, BCB Baltic AB (1 4.07° o,

l{ermitage Eesti 0CJ (11.94° s), Thominvest Oy (11.94° c) and Assetman Oy (11.45°
.

The Management Board of AS Viisnurk authorised these consolidated financial statements for issue at 6 April 2010.
Pursuant to the Commercial Code of the Republic of Estonia, the financial statements are subject to approval by the
Supervisory Board of AS Viisnurk and the General Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholders have the right not to
approve the annual report prepared and approved by the Management Board, and request preparation of a new annual
report.

Summary of accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless stated otherwise.

Bases of preparation

The 2009 consolidated financial statements of AS Viisnurk Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted in the European Union (IFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make assumptions and
judgements, which affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and related assumptions are based on the historical experience and several other factors
that are believed to be relevant and that are based on circumstances which help define principles for the evaluation of
assets and liabilities and which are not directly available from other sources. Actual results may not coincide with these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is changed if it affects only the current period, or current and future
periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Management decisions and accounting estimates related to the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and that may be subject to adjustment next year are presented in Note 4.

(



Notes to the financi& statements

Changes in presentation

The management has reclassified the expenses related to some employees from cost of goods sold to administrative
expenses as their tasks were determined to be not directly related to production process. The comparatives have been
reclassified accordingly. The impact of reclassification on the carrying value of inventories was insignificant.

Cost of goods sold

2008 2008 2008 2008
1111K 000 U.K (100 (‘000 (000

rrstated ,isteited
Rass miterials and main materials 119 110 119 110 7613 7613
Personnel expenses 53 986 55 512 3 450 3 548
Ilecincit’, and heat 35 197 35218 2250 2251
Depreciation 7 933 7 933 507 507
Purchased goods 992 992 63 63

hange in bal bees of Onished goods and work -10 256 -10 256 -656 -656
in progress
Other cpcnscs 10685 10985 683 702

TOTAL 217 647 219 494 13910 14028

Administrative expenses

2008 2008 2008 2008
EEK ‘000 HK 000 6000 (‘000

reataled tsstated
Personnel expenses 5 495 3 835 351 245 —

Purchased services 222 156 14 10
Office expenses 327 127 21 21 ‘

Other expenses 916 795 59 51

TOTAL 6 960 5113 445 327 f, 9-

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in current reporting period, relevant to the Group’s
financial statements

I Amendment to IFRS 7, issued in March 2009 “Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments”. The
amendment requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk. The entity is
required to disclose an analysis of financial instruments using a three-level fair value measurement hierarchy.
The amendment (a) clarifies that the maturity analysis of liabilities should include issued financial guarantee
contracts at the maximum amount of the guarantee in the earliest period in which the guarantee could be
called; and (b) requires disclosure of remaining contractual maturities of financial derivatives if the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. An entity will further have to
disclose a maturity analysis of financial assets it holds for managing liquidity risk, if that information is
necessary to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of liquidity risk. The
enhanced disclosure requirements did not have any impact on the disclosures in these financial statements.

• IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. The standard applies to entities whose debt or equity instruments are traded in
a public market or that file, or are in the process of filing, their financial statements with a regulatory
orgamsation for the purpose of issuing any class of instruments in a public market. IFRS 8 requires an entity
to report financial and descriptive information about its operating segments, with segment information
presented on a similar basis to that used for internal reporting purposes. The adoption of IFRS 8 has resulted
in an increase in the number of reportable segments presented, as the previously reported Furniture segment
has been split into Furniture factory and Skano.

• lAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, revised in September 2007. The main change in lAS I is the
replacement of the income statement by a statement of comprehensive income which includes all non owner
changes in equity, such as the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets. Alternatively, entities are
allowed to present two statements: a separate income statement and a statement of comprehensive income.
The Group has elected to present a single statement of comprehensive income. The revised lAS 1 also
introduces a requirement to present a statement of financial position (balance sheet) at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period whenever the entity restates comparatives due to reclassifications, changes in
accounting policies, or corrections of errors. The revised lAS 1 had an impact on the presentation of the
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Notes to the financial statements

Group’s financial statements but had no impact on the recognition or measurement of specific transactions
and balances.

• lAS 23, Borrowing Costs, revised in March 2007. The main change is the removal of the option of
immediately recognising as an expense borrowing costs that relate to assets that take a substantial period of
time to get ready for use or sale. Such borrowing costs form part of the cost of that asset, if the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009. Prior to the revision of the standard, the
Group’s accounting policy was capitalization of borrowing costs and thus the change had no impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in current reporting period, irrelevant to the Group’s
financial statements

• Improvements to International l’inancial Reporting Standards, issued in May 2008. The amendments consist
of a mixture of substantive changes, clarifications, and changes in terminology in various standards. The
substantive changes relate to the following areas: classification as held for sale under IFRS in case of a loss
of control over a subsidiary (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009); possibility of
presentation of financial instruments held for trading as non-current under lAS 1; accounting for sale of
lAS 16 assets which were previously held for rental and classification of the related cash flows under lAS 7 as
cash flows from operating activities; clarification of definition of a curtailment under lAS 19; accounting for
below market interest rate government loans in accordance with lAS 20; making the defimtion of borrowing
costs in lAS 23 consistent with the effective interest method; clarification of accounting for subsidiaries held
for sale under lAS 27 and IFRS 5; reduction in the disclosure requirements relating to associates and joint
ventures under lAS 28 and lAS 31; enhancement of disclosures required by lAS 36; clarification of
accounting for advertising costs under lAS 38; amending the definition of the fair value through profit or loss
category to be consistent with hedge accounting under lAS 39; introduction of accounting for investment
properties under construction in accordance with lAS 40; and reduction in restrictions over manner of
determining fair value of biological assets under lAS 41. Further amendments made to lAS 8, 10, 18, 20, 29,
34, 40, 41 and to IFRS 7 represent terminology or editorial changes only, which the IASB believes have no or
minimal effect on accounting. The amendments did not have an impact on the Group.

• IFRS 1 and L\.S 27 amendment- “Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate”

• IFRS 2 “Vesting Conditions and Cancellations”

• lAS 32 and lAS 1 amendment “Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation”

• IFRIC 13 “Customer Loyalt) Programmes”

• IFRIC 14 “ lAS 19—The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction”

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued not effective on current reporting period and may have an
impact on Group’s financial statements

• Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards (issued in April 2009, (amendments to IFRS 2,
lAS 38, IFRIC 9 and IFRIC 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009;
amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 8, lAS 1, lAS 7, lAS 17, lAS 36 and lAS 39 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010; the improvements have not yet been adopted by the EU). The
improvements consist of a mixture of substantive changes and clarifications in the following standards and
interpretations: clarification that contributions of businesses in common control transactions and formation
of joint ventures are not within the scope of IFRS 2; clarification of disclosure requirements set by IFRS 5
and other standards for non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations; requiring to report a measure of total assets and liabilities for each reportable segment under
IFRS 8 only if such amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker; amending lAS 1 to
allow classification of certain liabilities settled by entity’s own equity instruments as non-current; changing
lAS 7 such that only expenditures that result in a recognised asset are eligible for classification as investing
activities; allowing classification of certain long term land leases as finance leases under lAS F’ even without
transfer of ownership of the land at the end of the lease; providing additional guidance in lAS 18 for
determining whether an entity acts as a principal or an agent; clarification in lAS 36 that a cash generating unit
shall not be larger than an operating segment before aggregation; supplementing lAS 38 regarding
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measurement of fair value of intangible assets acquired in a business combination; amending lAS 39 (i) to
include in its scope option contracts that could result in business combinations, (ii) to clarify the period of
reclassifying gains or losses on cash flow hedging instruments from equity to profit or loss for the year and
(iii) to state that a prepayment option is closely related to the host contract if upon exercise the borrower
reimburses economic loss of the lender; amending IFRIC 9 to state that embedded derivatives in contracts
acquired in common control transactions and formation of joint ventures are not within its scope; and
removing the restriction in IFRIC 16 that hedging instruments may not be held by the foreign operation that
itself is being hedged. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any material effect on its financial
statements.

• IFRS 9, Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and Measurement(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by the EU). IFRS 9 replaces those parts of lAS 39 relating to the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Key features are as follows:

I. Financial assets are required to be classified into two measurement categories: those to be measured
subsequently at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost. The decision is to be
made at initial recogmuon. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument;

2. An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a debt instrument and both (i) the
objective of the entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and (ti) the
asset’s contractual cash flows represent only payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only “basic loan
features”). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss;

3. .Ml equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair value. Equity instruments that are held for
trading will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable
election can be made at initial recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses
through other comprehensive income rather than profit or loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss. This election may be made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends are
to be presented in profit or loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.

The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the impact on the Group and the timing of its
adoption by the Group.

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued not effective on current reporting period and have no
impact on Group’s financial statements

• lAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, issued in November 2009 (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011; not yet adopted by the EU);

• lAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”, revised in January 2008 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009);

• lAS 32 “Classification of Rights Issues” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010);

• “Eligible I ledged Items”—Amendment to lAS 39 (effective with retrospective application for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009);

• IFRS I “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”, revised in December 2008
(effective for the first IFRS financial statements for a period beginning on or after 1 July 2009; restructured
I1’RS 1 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after 31 December 2009);

• “Additional Exemptions for First time Adopters” - Amendments to IFRS 1 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010; not yet adopted by the EU);

• “Group Cash-settled Share based Payment Transactions” Amendments to IFRS 2 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 january 2010, not yet adopted by the EU);

• IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, revised in January 2008 (effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July
2009);
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• 1FRS 5 “Non current Assets field for Sale and Discontinued Operations” amendments (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009);

• Embedded Derivatives - Amendments to IFRIC 9 and L\S 39, issued in March 2009 (effective for annual
periods ending on or after 30 June 2009; amendments to IFRIC 19 and lAS 39 as adopted by the EU are
effective for annual periods beginning after 31 December 2009, early adoption permitted);

• IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 30 March
2009);

• “Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement” — Amendment to IFRIC 14(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011; not yet adopted by the EU);

• IFRIC 15 “Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate” (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009; IFRIC 15 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after 31
December 2009);

• IFRIC 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation” (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 October 2008; IFRIC 16 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after
30 June 2009, early adoption permitted);

• IFRIC 17 “Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009; IFRIC 17 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after 31 October 2009,
early adoption permitted);

• IFRTC 18 “Transfers of Assets from Customers” (effective prospectively to transfers of assets from
customers received on or after 1 July 2009, earlier application permitted; IFRIC 18 as adopted by the EU is
effective for annual periods beginning after 31 October 2009, early adoption permitted);

• IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010; not yet adopted by the EU);

• “Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for first-time adopters”- amendment to IFRS 1
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010; not yet adopted by the EU).

Comparability

ihe financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the consistency and comparability principles, the
nature of the changes in methods and their effect is explained in the respective notes. When the presentation of items
in the financial statements or their classification method has been amended, then also the comparative information of
previous periods has been restated.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of their primary economic environment (the functional currency). The functional currency of AS Viisnurk is the
Fstnnian kroon (EEK). These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Estonian kroons EEK)
and in thousands of euros (EUR) in accordance with the requirements of Tallinn Stock Exchange. The Estonian kroon
is pegged to the Euro at the rate of EEK 15.6466 to € 1. All financial information presented in euros has been
translated using the aforementioned exchange rate. Thus, no translation differences arise from the use of this
presentation currency.

The results and financial position of foreign entities that have a functional currency other than the presentation
currency of the Group are translated into the presentation currencies as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities are translated into Estonian kroons and Euros at the exchange rate prevailing at the
balance sheet, except for non current assets which are translated into Estonian kroons and Euros using the
exchange rates prevailing at the acquisition date.

(b) income and expenses are translated at the avcrage exchange rate for the year (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing at transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate at the transaction dates);

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity and comprehensive
income.
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Principles of consolidation and accounting for subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than 500 o. The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of subsidiaries from the date at which control is transferred to the Group until the date at which control
ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus any costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

In the consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries have been combined on a line by line basis. All inter group
receivables and liabilities balances and transactions between group entities and unrealised gains and losses on these
transactions are eliminated except for losses due to impairment of assets. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred. All group entities use uniform accounting policies.

Foreign currency transactions

‘ll foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the foreign currency exchange rate
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. All gains and losses
from foreign currency transactions are recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the balance sheet and the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
Ilank account balances (except for overdraft) and term deposits with maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at amortised cost.

Financial assets

The purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised at the trade date. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred, and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Depending on the purpose for which financial assets were acquired as well as management’s intentions, financial assets
are divided into the following groups:

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
- loans and receivables:
- held-to-maturity investments;
- available for-sale financial assets;

ILoans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently carried at
Iim0rt1sed cost using the effective interest method (less any impairment losses). See also accounting policy II.

rhe Group has not classified any financial assets as held to maturity investments, financial assets at fair value through
Drofit or loss or available-for sale financial assets.

fhe Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
issets is impaired.

Trade receivables

Frade receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
ictive market. Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less a provision for impairment.

[mpairment of receivables is recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
unounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Evidence of potential impairment includes the bankruptcy
)r major financial difficulties of the debtor and non-adherence to payment dates. The impairment of the receivables
that are individually significant (i.e. need for a write-down) is assessed individually for each customer, based on the
present value of expected future collectible amounts. Receivables that are not individually significant or for which no

2?
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objective evidence of impairment exists, are collectively assessed for impairment using previous years’ experience on
uncollectible receivables. The amount of loss of the impaired receivables is the difference between the carrying
amounts of receivables and the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of receivables is reduced by the amount of doubtful receivables and the impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss within Other operating expenses. If a receivable is deemed irrecoverable, the receivable and its
impairment loss are taken off the balance sheet. The collection of the receivables that have previously been written
down is accounted for as a reversal of the allowance for doubtful receivables.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of acquisition cost and net realisable value. Inventories are initially recognised at
acquisition cost which consists of purchase costs, direct and indirect production costs and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their current condition and location.

In addition to the purchase price, purchase costs also include custom duties, other non-refundable taxes and directly
attributable transport and other costs related to purchase, less discounts and subsidies. The production costs of
inventories include costs directly related to the units of production (such as direct raw materials and materials and
packing material costs, unavoidable storage costs related to work in progress, direct labour costs), and also fixed and
variable production overheads that are allocated to the cost of products on the basis of normal production capacities.

The weighted average cost method is used for the evaluation of inventories at the Group.

I’he net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The amount of the inventory write-down is recognised
in the income statement line Cost of&oods sold.

The expenditure incurred for the purpose of real estate development is reported in the balance sheet line Inventories
either as work-in progress or finished goods, depending on the stage of completion. When the development of
property is financed with a loan, the borrowing costs incurred during development are included in the cost of the
property. The completed real estate project is sold either in parts (by residential buildings, apartments, office premises,
etc.) or as a whole. Revenue is recognised as revenue from the sale of goods. A notarial agreement is concluded
between the seller and the buyer at the time of the sale of the property and the respective entry is made in the land
register.

Investment property

Real estate properties (land, buildings) that the Group owns or leases under finance lease terms to earn lease income or
for capital appreciation or both, and that arc not used for the Group’s operating activities, are classified as investment
property.

Investment property is initially measured at its cost, including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Investment property is
depreciated over its useful life using the straight-line method for calculation of depreciation. Annual depreciation rates
of investment property range from 2.5 to 15 per cent. The accounting policies in Section K apply to both property,
plant and equipment, and investment property.

Depreciation of an asset begins when the asset is available for use for the purpose intended by management and is
ceased when the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, when the asset is permanently withdrawn from use or
upon its reclassification as held for sale. At each balance sheet date, the appropriateness of the depreciation rates, the
depreciation method and the residual value is reviewed.

The costs of reconstruction and improvement are added to historical cost when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and they can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged

a to the income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are non current assets used in the operating activities of the Group with a useful life of
over one year. An item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at its cost which consists of the
purchase price (including customs duties and other non refundable taxes) and other expenditures directly related to the
acquisition that are necessary for bringing the asset to its operating condition and location. Borrowing costs related to
the acquisition of non current assets, the completion of which occurs over a longer period of time, are included in the
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cost of non current assets. The cost of a self-constructed asset is determined using the same principles as for an
acquired asset.

Costs of reconstruction and improvements are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see accounting policy M). The difference between the acquisition cost and the residual value of an asset is depreciated
over the useful life of the asset. Each part of an item with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the
item and with a useful life different from other significant parts of that same item is depreciated separately based on its
useful life.

Depreciation is calculated under the straight-line method. The annual depreciation rates applied to individual assets by
groups of property, plant and equipment are as follows (per cent)
• buildings and facilities 2.5 — 15
• machinery and equipment 10 —25
• motor vehicles 10 — 20
• other fixtures and fittings 20 — 40
• land is not depreciated

Depreciation of an asset begins when the asset is available for use for the purpose intended by management and is
ceased when the residual value exceeds the carrying amount, when the asset is permanently withdrawn from use or
upon its reclassification as held for sale. At each balance sheet date, the appropriateness of the depreciation rates, the
depreciation method and the residual values are reviewed.

Where an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount (higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and its value in use), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (see the accounting policy in Section I\I).

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from the disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment are included either within other operating income or other operating expenses in the income statement.

Items of property, plant and equipment that are expected to be sold within the next 12 months are reclassified as held
for sale.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded at cost and they are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses (see accounting policy M.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over their useful lives (2.5 5 years) using the straight-line method.
I1w Group has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation, and assets with unlimited useful lives (land) are reviewed for
any indication of impairment. Whenever such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
compared with the carrying amount. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell

(J and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting date. The previous impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the remaining carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount which would have
been determined considering regular deprecation, had the impairment loss not been recognised.

Operating and finance lease

Leases which transfer all significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee are classified as finance
leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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.\ssets and liabilities under finance leases are imtially recognised at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. Financial expenses are allocated over the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Payments made or received under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease. Properties leased out under operating leases are classified as investment property.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (trade payables, borrowings, accrued expenses and other short and long-term borrowings) are
initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Upon the initial recognition of such financial liabthties which are not accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss, the transactions costs directly attributable to the acquisition are deducted from their fair value.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to period expenses.

The amortised cost of current financial liabilities generally equals their nominal value; therefore, current financial
liabthties are carried in the balance sheet in their redemption value. For determining the amortised cost of non-current
financial liabilities, they are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received (less any transaction
costs), calculating interest expense on the liability in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate method.

.. financial liability is classified as current when it is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date or
the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. Borrowings due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date that are refinanced as
long-term after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, are recognised as
current liabthties. Borrowings that the lender has the right to recall at the balance sheet date as a consequence of a
breach of contractual terms are also recognised as current liabilities.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or contractual obligation which has
arisen as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and the amount of the liability can be reliably estimated.

The provisions are recognised based on management’s (or independent experts’) estimates regarding the amount and
timing of the expcctcd outflows. Risks and uncertainties are taken into consideration when measuring provisions; the
provisions for which the effect of the time value of money is insignificant are discounted. The increase of the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

Other commitments that in certain circumstances may become obligations, but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Provision for long-term disability compensations

l’nder law, the Group is obliged to pay compensation to employees for permanent injuries incurred during their
employment at the Group. The level of the benefit depends on the extent of disability, the average monthly salary of

the employee prior to injury, and the changes in pension payments by the state. The level of the benefit does not
depend on the length of service. For the Group, the obligation to pay benefits arises at the time when the degree of the

Q employee’s incapacity for work is determined.

Disability compensation is recognised in the balance sheet in its discounted present value. In measuring the liability,
management has used demographic assumptions (such as mortality), and financial assumptions (e.g. the discount rate
and future benefit levels).

The rate used to discount the obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on high
quality corporate bonds, the currency and term of which are consistent with the currency and estimated term of the
obligation.
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Payables to employees

Payables to employees contain the contractual right arising from employment contracts and performance based pay
which is calculated on the basis of Group’s financial results and meeting of objectives set for the employees.
Performance-based pay is included in period expenses and as a liability if it is paid out in the next financial year.

Pursuant to employment contracts and current legislation, payables to employees also include an accrued holiday pay
liability as at the balance sheet date. This liability also includes accrued social and unemployment taxes calculated on it.

Taxation

Corporate income tax

According to the Estoman Income Tax Act, the profits earned by Estonian entities are not taxed when they are
incurred but at the time they are distributed. l’rom 1 January 2008, dividends are taxed with the income tax rate of
21/79 (until 31.12.2007: 22/78) of the amount paid Out as net dividends, from which income tax paid before 1.1.2000
can be deducted using a respective coefficient. The corporate income tax arising from the payments of dividends is
accounted for as an expense in the period when dividends are declared, regardless of the actual payment date or the
period for which dividends are paid.

Due to the nature of the Estonian taxation system, the term “tax base of assets and liabilities” does not have economic
substance and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities and assets can arise.

ccordmg to local income tax legislation, the profits of entities in Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine are adjusted for the
permanent and temporary differences provided by law. Pursuant to tax legislation, temporary differences arise between
the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities; therefore deferred income tax liabilities and assets arise. As
at 31.12.2009 and 31.12.2008, the subsidiaries did not have any deferred tax assets and liabilities. 1’he Management of
the Group estimates that the realisation of the income tax asset is unlikely, thus it is not recorded in the financial
statements.

\ccording to income tax regulations in Latvia and Lithuania, the taxpayers of the respective country are subject to the
corporate income tax on taxable profits earned in the financial year. In Latvia the income tax rate was 150 0 in 2009 and
2008, in Lithuania 200o in 2009 and 1500 in 2008. The corporate income tax in Ukraine was 25° 0 in 2009 and 2008.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods and products is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, when the amount of revenue and costs incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the sales transaction will be collected.

Cash flow statement

I’he cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. Cash flows from operating activities are determined by
adjusting the net profit for the financial year through elimination of the effect of non-monetary transactions, changes
in the balances of assets and liabilities related to operating activities and revenue and expenses related to investing or

C financing activities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments have been determined and information about operating segments has been disclosed in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Management Board of AS Viisnurk..

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items which are directly related to the segment or can be allocated to it on
a reasonable basis.
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Statutory reserve capital

Statutory reserve capital is formed from annual net profit allocations as well as other provisions which are entered in
reserve capital pursuant to legislation or articles of association. The amount of reserve capital is stipulated in the articles
of association and it cannot be less than 1/10 of share capital. Each financial year, at least 1/20 of net profit shall be
entered in the reserve capital. When reserve capital reaches the level required by the articles of association, the
allocations to reserve capital from the net profit may be terminated.

Based on the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the statutory legal reserve may be used to cover a loss,
or to increase share capital. Payments shall not be made to shareholders from the statutory legal reserve.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year attributable to the equity holders
of the parent by the period’s weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. Diluted earnings per share are
calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year attributable to the equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares, adjusted for the effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Events after the balance sheet date

Significant circumstances that have an adjusting effect on the evaluation of assets and liabilities and that became
evident between the balance sheet date and the date of approving the financial statements (6 April 2010) but that are
related to the reporting period or prior periods, have been recorded in the financial statements. Non-adjusting events
and the events that have a significant impact on the results of the next financial year have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate.
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Notes to the financial statements

Financial risk management

The Group’s financial instruments include cash for funding operating activities and receivables from debtors and
pavables to creditors arising in operating activities as well as loans. Management defines risk as a potential deviation
from the expected results. ‘ihe Group’s risk management is based on the requirements of the Tallinn Stock Exchange,
Financial Supervision Authority and other regulatory bodies as well as compliance with Corporate Governance
Recommendations and the Group’s internal regulations.

Financial assets
Cash and bank

mel. cash
bank

31.12.2009
LJiK 000

6 091
121

5970
15819
15 102

717
21910

31.12.2009
6000

389
8

381
1011

965
46

1400

The Group is exposed to cash flow risk affected by interest rate changes because most of its loans are with variable
interest rates — the sensitivity analysis for fluctuations in interest rates is presented below. Management estimates that
the cash flow risk related to changes in interest rates is not material; therefore, the Group does not use financial
instruments to manage risks.

The interest rate risk of AS Viisnurk arises primarily from possible changes in EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered
Rate), because most of the Group’s loans are tied to EURIBOR. As at 31.12.2009, the 6 month EURIBOR was 0.994
and as at 31.12.2008, 2.971. If EURIBOR had changed by 1 pp, the total interest cost of current loans would have
changed by 450 thousand kroons (29 thousand euros) (2008: by 573 thousand kroons (36 thousand euros)).

The dates for settling interest rates of loans depending on changes in EURIBOR are as follows:
on the loan in the initial amount of EUR 2,660 thousand EEK 41,620 thousand) at 30 September and
31 March of each year;

V (in the loan in the initial amount of EUR 831 thousand (EEK 13,000 thousand) at 30 November and 30 May
of each year;

V on the loan m the initial amount of EUR 479 thousand (EEK ,500 thousand) at 30 April and 31 October of
each year.

As at 31.12.2009, the total carrying amount of these loans was 29,84 thousand kroons (1,903 euros) and as at
31.12.2008: 36,414 thousand kroons (2,327 thousand euros).

The deposits of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents have fixed interest rates.

As at 31.12.2009, finance lease agreements in the amount of 3 980 thousand kroons (254 thousand euros) (31.12.2008:
1,266 thousand kroons (81 thousand euros)) had fixed interest rates.

Credit risk

AS Viisnurk’s credit risk is the risk of the inability of its business partners to meet their contractual obligations. The
Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits in banks and receivables.

All financial assets of the Group are in the category “loans and receivables”, all financial liabilities are “other financial
liabilities” earned at ainortised cost.

31.12.2008
1UiK 000

6 913
188

6 725
14266
13867

399
21 179

Receivables (Note 5)
mel. trade receivables

other short-term receivables
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Borrowings (Note 10) 35 132 45 442 2 245 2 904
Pavables (Note 12) 12 941 29 305 828 1 873

mci. trade pavables 11 336 26 4811 725 1 693
other short-term pavables 1 605 2 817 103 1811

Total financial liabilities 48 073 74 747 3 073 4 777
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is primarily related to long-term borrowings with floating interest rates.
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The Group approves only banks and financial institutions with the credit rating of “A” operating in the Baltic States.
With regard to banks operating in Eastern Europe, the banks and financial institutions without the credit rating are
approved. For the purpose of managing current assets and funding its operations, the Group has approved mostly
banks with the credit rating of “A”.

31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
EEK ‘0000 LLK 0(10 C ‘000 C ‘000

(redir rating” \“ 3440 6 169 220 394
redit rating “B” 692 44

\t rated 1 838 556 117 36
Total 5 970 6 725 381 430

The credit rating is available on the website of Moody’s Investor Service.

Receivables

Pursuant to the Group’s credit policy, no securities are required from wholesale customers to ensure collection of
receivables, but focus is laid on monitoring deliveries, balances of accounts receivable and compliance with payment
terms on a continuous basis. In riskier markets, complete or partial prepayment, credit limits and shorter payment
terms are applied.

As a rule, sales to retail customers occur in cash, using prepayments or bank credit cards, therefore there is no credit
risk related to sale to retail customers except for risk related to banks and financial institutions that the Group has
approved as its business partners.

\s at the balance sheet date, the Group was not aware of any major risks related to accounts receivable except for 46
thousand kroons (30 thousand euros) (2008: 547 thousand kroons (35 thousand euros)) which had been deemed as
uncollectible, sec Notes 5 and 21. The Group monitors the financial position of its current and potential partners and
their ability to meet the obligations they have assumed.

Key customers and their share

Key customers are defined as those to whom the sales amount to more than 50 o of the Group’s revenue.

Balance of receivables from key customers by age:
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
EEK ‘000 L.LK ‘000 t ‘000 1 ‘000

Not due 8941 4909 572 314
Oserdue:
Up to 90 dats 897 997 57 63
()aer 90 dns 0 9 0 1

TOTAL 9838 5915 629 378

‘see Note 5.

Liquidity risk

Liqt.udirv risk is a potential loss arising from limited or insufficient monetary funds necessary for the meeting of
obligations ansing from the Group’s operations. Management constantly monitors cash flow forecasts, evaluating the
existence and availability of the Group’s monetary funds to meet the obligations assumed and to fund the Group’s
strategic goals. ‘I’he Group has a factoring limit available in the total amount of “,OOO thousand kroons (4’ thousand
euros) (2008: “,000 thousand kroons (4” thousand euros)) to manage liquidity risk.

Analysts of financial habdities by maturities as at 31.12.2009:

I:I:K ‘000
Undiscounted cash flows

Balance at Up to 3
3112.2009 months 3 12 months t2 tears 3 5 rears ‘I’otal

Bank loans and overdr,tft (Note
31153 1 407 7234 16717 7752 33 110

l’tnance lease liabilities (Note 10) 3 979 157 472 608 2 823 4060
trade payables Note 12) 11 336 11 336 11 336
Other pasables Note 12) 1 605 1 605 - - 1 605
Total 48073 14 505 7 706 17 325 10 575 50 111
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Undiscounted cash floss

For determining cash flows for interest heating borrowings which are based on floating interest rate, the spot interest
rate has been used.

Foreign currency exchange risk

The foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the Group may incur a significant loss as a result of fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates. AS Viisnurk’s foreign currency exchange risk from export-import transactions is low because
most of the contracts have been concluded in euros. In the financial year, the Group collected 19.0 million kroons (1.2
million euros) in currencies not directly or indirectly tied to the Estonian kroon, of which 65° o constituted proceeds in
1 All, 28° o in LVL and 7° o in USD. The Group paid for goods and services 13.3 million kroons (0.8 million euros) in
the currencies with an exchange risk of which 68° o in UAJI and 26° o in LVL. Management expects the foreign
currency exchange risk to increase due to the expansion of activities in Ukraine, as the transactions are concluded in
hryvnias in the local market. The assets and liabilities located outside Estonia are exposed to changes in exchange rates
of the local currency.

The Group has not acquired any derivative financial instruments to manage currency risk.

rtu utde t °it ee ii u,els
nth. to tpe pros if iorltifioatiun on’y
lnifo:oo 1. /f)

Koupaevao --

Prcot ho pt ., TaUnr

Balance at
31.112009

Up to 3
months 3 12 months 1-2 years 3 5 years lotal

Bank loans and n rdraft (Note
1° 1 990 9(1 442 1 068 495 2 115

ittats. e lease liabilities (Note 10) 255 1 1 30 39 1 8( ) 259
1 rack pnables (Note 12) 725 725 - - - 725
( )thc r p o ables (Note 12) 103 103

. 103
Total 3 073 928 492 1 107 675 3 202

Analysis of financial liabilities by maturities as at 31.12.2008:
L.LK 000

Undiscounted cash floss
Balance at Up to 3
31.12.2008 months 3-12 months 1-2 years 3-5 years lotal

Bank Ii ems and ocrdraft Note
lo 4-4 176 2 778 16 704 10 184 17 984 47 650
linance lease liabihtis (Note 1(3, 1 266 96 289 385 64(3 1 410
Frjdc pavables Noie 12) 26 488 26 488 - - 26 488
tither pavables (Note 12) 2817 2817 2817
Total 74 747 32 179 16 993 10 569 18 624 78 365

( 00(1
Undiscountcd cash flows

Balance at Up to 3
31.12.2008 months 3-12 months 1-2 years 3 5 years Total

Bank loans and oserdraft (Note
1)) 2 823 178 1 068 651 1 149 3 045
ltnancc lease liabilities (Note 10) 81 6 18 25 41 90
I rade pay ables (Note 12) 1 693 1 693 - - 1 693
( )ther pay ables (Note 12) 180 1811 — - 181)
Total 4 777 2 057 1 086 676 1 190 5 008

N \K
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In capital risk management, the Group’s main goal is to ensure the Group’s sustainability of operations in order to
generate returns to its shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, thereby maintaining the optimal capital structure
to lower the cost of capital. In order to preserve or improve the capital structure, the Group can regulate the dividends
payable to shareholders, reimburse the paid in capital, issue new shares or sell assets to lower its liabilities. ‘The
management monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as the sum of equity as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet and net debt. The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio up to 35°C

The Group’s foreign currency positions at 31.12.2009:

Amounts presented in the currencies in
which the financial instruments have
been denominated:

IA R IAL L07, 1 ‘All
‘000

SI:K

Cash and bank 771 230 71 10 882 -

Receiv.ille (NoteS; 2 529 822 12 10 11)3 -

Total financial assets 3 300 1 052 83 20 985 -

It irrisaings (Note I)); 3 1)34 2 151 I) I) I) —

Payableo (Note 12) 15 974 75 50 5 127 20
Financial liabilities 19 008 2 126 50 5 127 20

Net foreign currency positions (15 708) (1 074) 33 15 858 (20)

:\nalysis in presentation currencies:
Net 6 reign currency positions INK (15 708) (16 804) 150 33)) 1 158 (30)
Net foreign currency positions diR (1 K!3; (1 074) 9 21 74 (2)
Strengthening or weakening of foreign Total
currency against I I (K. ° o impact on

2°o 3))’ 15 o net profit
l.tIect in net profit INK 7 347 5 359
I(ffect on net profit I(IR I) 22 (1 22

The Group’s foreign currency positions and sensitivity analysis at 3 1.12.2008:

990
Amounts presented in the currencies in 1:1 R 1.11. 1.1 7. 1 All Af)K
which the financial Instruments have
been dung )minated:
Cash and bank 901 259 109 22 692 -

Receivables (Note 5) 5 60)) 70)) 32 5 231 -

Total financial assets 6 501 959 141 27 923 -

I3orro\vings (Note 10) (1 2 9(4 (1 It (1 —

Payables (Note 12) 34 75)) 194 124 22 124 73
Financial liabilities 34 759 3 098 124 22 124 73

Net foreign currency positions (28 258) (2 139) 17 5 799 (73)

-‘inalvsis in presentation currencies:
Net foreign currency positions liCK (28 258) (33 481) 80 110 1 123 (115)
Net toreign currency positions IiL’R (1 806) (2 140) 5 7 72 (7)
Strengthening or a cakening of foreign Total
currency against liCK, 0

10°) impact on
2° o 45) net profit:

I:ffect on net proht liCK 2 505 12 519
Cffect on net profit CUR 0 32 1 33

.tz
.. oi

t)•) C

T° tA

1:

A: NCapital management

31.12.2009 31. 12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
BEK ‘000 ELK ‘000 € ‘000 C ‘000

Borrowints (Note 10) 35 132 45 442 2 245 2 904
Cash and cash equivalents 6 091 6 913 389 442
Net debt 29 041 38 529 1 856 2 462
Coal equita (Note 14) 71 508 71 21)) 4 570 4 548
Ii,tal capii.il 100 549 109 729 6 426 7 010
Debt to capit.il ratio 29°o 35° 29% 35°
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Notes to the financial statements
K Jpe;(

Fair value wt a -- luihn

Management estimates that the fair values of cash, accounts payable, short term loans and borrowings do not
materially differ from their carrying amounts. The fair values of long-term loans and borrowings do not materially
differ from their carrying amounts because their interest rates correspond in material extent to the interest rate risks
prevathng in the market. The Group has refinanced one loan in 2009; the risk margin of refinanced loan is 3.6° o (Note
it)). If the same risk margin were applied to determine the discount rate for calculating the fair value for all the other
loans, the fair value of loans would be less than their carrying amounts by 189 thousand kroons (12 thousand euros).
The Group’s management has assumed that since the effect on the risk margin is low as compared with the date of
loan assumption, the fair values of liabilities do not significantly differ from their carrying amounts.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make accounting estimates. Management also needs to pass judgement regarding the choice of
accounting policies and their application.

Management ludgements and estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis and they are based on historical experience
and other factors such as forecasts of future events which are considered reasonable under current circumstances.

Iiie areas which require more significant or complex management decisions, and estimates and which have a major
effect on the financial statements, include valuation of receivables and inventories (Note 6), and estimation of useful
lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) and investment properw (Note 7), and of the
provisions for compensations for long term disability (Note 13).

Valuation of receivables

Trade receivables are short-term receivables from customers, generated in the Group’s ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are carried at amortised cost (i.e. original invoice amount less any repayments and any impairment
losses, if necessary). In valuating receivables, the Management bases its estimations on its best knowledge, taking into
account historical experience, general background information and possible presumptions and conditions of future
events. In identifying the amount of receivable written down the length of debt is taken into account.

Valuation of inventories

Management measures inventories using its best judgement, historical experience, general background information and
assumptions and conditions of future expected events. In determining the recoverable amount of inventories, the sales
potential and potential net realisable value of finished goods is considered; in assessing the recoverable amount of raw
materials and materials, their potential use in producing finished goods and earning income is estimated. In assessing
work-in-progress, its stage of completion which can be measured reliably is used as the basis. In assessing the cost of
raw materials which are not precisely measurable, management uses estimates based on historical experience.

Impairment testing of non-current assets

If there exist any indications that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable amount (higher of the
asset’s fair value (less costs to sell) and its value in use) of the asset. (see also the accounting policy in Section \I)

Management has performed an impairment test in 2008 and 2009 during the course of which, the recoverable value
(based on value in use) of non current assets of the building materials division and the furniture factory were estimated.
During the test, the future cash flows of the respective cash generating units were estimated, and the present value of
the cash flows was compared with the unit’s carrying amount. The discount rate used for discounting the cash flows
was 12° o (2008: 12° o). No items of property, plant and equipment were written down as a result of the test.

Useful lives and residual values of investment property and property, plant and equipment.

Management determined the useful lives of real estate properties, buildings and equipment on the basis of production
volumes, historical experience in the area and future outlook. The residual values are determined based on historical
experience in the area and future outlook. When assessing the sensitivity of profits to depreciation and amortisation,
management assumed that by changing the deprecation rates by 25° , the Group’s profit in 2009 would change by
1,861 thousand kroons (119 thousand euros) and in 2008, by 2,129 thousand kroons (136 thousand euros).



Notes to the financiaf statements

Estimation of provisions for long-term disability compensation

Calculation of the amount of compensation depends on several assumptions, the most significant of which are
assumptions regarding the expected remaining lives of employees receiving the compensation, and assumptions about
the discount rate. Management has used the statistical data publicly available at the Statistical Office of Estonia
regarding the expectations of the remaining period of payments. The discount rate has been determined based on
market yields on high quality corporate bonds, available in the Baltic Bond List. The discount rate in 2009 was 8% and
in 2008, 90

0. If the discount rate was changed by I pp, the balance of payables would change by 242 thousand EEK
(15 thousand euros) in 2009 and by 2 thousand EEK (15 thousand euros) in 2008. See also Note 2P and Note 13.

Effects of the economic crisis

Effect of the ongoing financial and economic crisis. The ongoing global financial and economic crisis which was
triggered by a significant decline in global liquidity in the middle of 2007 (often also referred to as the Credit Crunch) has
resulted in, among other things, a lower level of capital market finding, lower liquidity levels across the banking sector,
and other economic sectors, and, at Omes, higher interbank lending rates and very high volatility in stock and currency
markets. The uncertainties in the global financial markets have also led to bank failures and bank rescues in the United
States of America, Western Europe, Russia and elsewhere. The full extent of the impact of the ongoing financial crisis
is ptoving to be difficult to assess or completely guard against.

Impact on liquidity: The volume of overall and interbank financing has significantly decreased in 2009. Such
circumstances may affect the ability of the Group to obtain new borrowings and re-finance its existing borrowings at
terms and conditions similar to those applied to earlier transactions.

Impact on customers/borrowers: The overall financial and economic environment may negatively affect the
solvency of the Group’s debtors. Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also have an impact on
management’s cash flow forecasts and cause the impairment of financial and non-financial assets. To the extent that
information is available, management has properly revised estimates of expected future cash flows in its impairment
assessments.

Management cannot reliably predict the effect of the economic crisis on the activities and financial position of the
Group. Management believes that all necessary measures have been taken into use to ensure the sustainabilitv and
development of the Group in current conditions.

Receivables and prepayments
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
.EEK ‘000 II K 000 6 ‘000 000

I rade rec is able, 16 106 14662 1 029 937
Allowance for impaired receivables (1 004) (795) (64) (51)
trade receivables net (Note 3) 15 102 13 867 965 886
Prepaid tases 2253 2 845 144 182
Prepaid sers ices 738 2457 47 157
tither current receivables (Note 3) 717 399 46 25

TOTAL 18 810 19 568 1 202 1 250

Impairment losses of receivables and their reversal are included in the income statement lines Other operatin,g income and
Other operatin,g e.\penses, see also Notes 20 and 21.

31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31,12.2009 31.12.2008
EEK ‘000 IiEK ‘000 (‘0(X) C 000

Irrecos erable receivables taken off the balance
sheet \ote 3) 209 183 13 12
loss du to imp.iirment of receivables (Note 3) 476 547 30 35

illeenon if receivables written down in
previous periods (Note 3) 58 208 4 13

ecituc( ainifit dentfitneerimseks
ntie) far the purpose of identificatiort• only

N A-)

Kuupäe9idate
Pricewate rhouseCoopers, T&llnn
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In 2009, materials were written off and written down in the amount of 288 thousand kroons (18 thousand euros)
(2008: 22’ thousand kroons (15 thousand euros)) and an allowance for the write-down and write-off of materials was
set up in the amount 500 thousand kroons (32 thousand euros) as at 31.12.2009 (2008: 450 thousand kroons (29
thousand euros)).

Tn 2009, finished goods with the cost of 395 thousand kroons (25 thousand euros) (2008: 160 thousand kroons (10
thousand euros)) were written off and written down and an allowance for the write-down and write-off of finished
goods was set up in the amount of 500 thousand kroons (32 thousand euros) as at 31.12.2009 (2008: 394 thousand
kroons (25 thousand euros)).

In 2009, goods purchased for resale with the cost of 52 thousand kroons (3 thousand euros) (2008: 65 thousand
kroons (4 thousand euros)) were written off.

Inventories have been pledged and they are part of the commercial pledge Note 10).

Inventories - real estate development

The buildings and land forming a part (Ca 14 000 in2) of the property at Rääma Street 31, Pärnu and covered by the
development contract are classified within inventories as a real estate development project. The development of the
property started in 2007.

HEK 1900 (‘000
Work in progress — real estate development at 31.12.2007 3 191 204

Sddttional investments 20(18 144 9

Work in progress — real estate development at 31.12.2008 3 335 213

.‘sdditional investments 2(1(19 1 1

Work in progress — real estate development at 31.12.2009 3 346 214

Analysis of trade receivables by aging:
31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
EEK 1900 bliK ‘000 C ‘000 C ‘000

Not due 12 901 1(1 129 825 647
Ruahki /ram ,‘o/omem a ha a/so hate r’eiiahks past
due 6 035 7 042 386 450
Reiza/iih /ram sn/amen’ who hair no rrrnthle pa it

due 6866 3087 439 197

Overdue but not impaired 2 201 3 738 140 239
Osemlue up /s90 days 2 201 2 952 140 189
( )rerdue mom /I)an 91) days 0 786 0 50

Impaired 1 004 795 64 51
()mrdue up/n 00 /(iti 310 0 20 0
(hvrdue man than 9/i Li’c 694 795 44 5/

TOTAL 16 106 14 662 1 029 937

Other current receivables are not due as at 31.12.2009 and 31.12.2008.

The receivables and prepavmerits are pledged as part of the commercial pledge, see Note 10.

Inventories

Ei
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31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2009 31.12.2008
LEK 001) I I K 000 C ‘000 1 000

Raw materials and other materials 9 099 13 150 582 841)
Work-in-progress - production 7 992 12 650 511 808
Work in progress

- real estate development 3 346 3 335 214 213
Finished goods 17 658 32 975 1 129 2 107
Ooods purehsed for resale 3 723 5 943 238 380
l’rcpavrnents to suppliers 94 43 6 3

TOTAL (Note 24) 41912 68 096 2 680 4 351
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Fair value of the share of the property:
bLK 00(1 ( Slot,

31.12.2008 11 501) 735

31.12.2009 8 Sin 543

The market value of the share of the registered immovable no. 1409605) at Rääma Street 31, Pärnu was determined by
an independent real estate expert as at 31.12 2009 and 2008. The fair value is based on the assumption that the share is
separately realisable. Management estimates that it is separately realisable.

As at 31.12.2009, the work in progress — real estate development was pledged as collateral in carrying amount of 3,346
thousand kroons (214 thousand euros) (31.12.2008: 3,335 thousand kroons (213 thousand euros)), see also Note 10.

Investment property

i;I.K 000 C ‘000
Cost at 31.12.2007 7 341 469
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2007 (4448) (284)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2007 2 893 185

23-
SJ.

Cost at 31.12.2008 7 341 469
Accumulated depreciation at 31.12.2008 (4 448) (284)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2008 2 893 185

Cost at 31.12.2009 7 341 469
Accumulated depreciation at 31. 12.2009 (4 448) (284)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2009 2 893 185

lair value of investment property:
CLX (100 C 7)00

31.12.2007
Share of reiistered immo\ iNc at 1{iitrn.i Street 94, P,irnu I)) (IC)) 639

31.12.2008
Shire of re,isien.d immoi able at R.Lm.i Street 94, P,irnu 9 (((5) 575

Investment properly compnses part of the property at Rääma Street 94, Pärnu (no. 1403305). The market value of the
share of the property was evaluated as at 31.12.2009 and 2008 by an independent real estate expert. The fair value is
based on the assumption that the share is separately realisable. Management estimates that it is separately realisable.

The investment property is not depreciated because the estimated residual values of the investment properties exceed
their carrying amounts.

In the financial year, the costs directly attributable to management of investment property were 109 thousand kroons
(7 thousand euros) (2008: 88 thousand kroons (6 thousand euros)). The costs for management of investment property
are attnhutable to registered immovables that did not generate rental income.

As at 31.12.2009, the carrying amount of investment property pledged as collateral amounted to 2,893 thousand kroons
(185 thousand euros), and as at 31.12.2008, 2,893 thousand kroons (185 thousand euros); see also Note 10.

Property, plant and equipment

I:1:K ‘000
l,and Buildings and Machinery and Other fixtures Constnaction TOTAL

facilities equipment in-progress
Cost at 31.12.2007 1238 61034 102 227 4646 2818 171 963
Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2007 0 (19 364) (85 412) (3 460) 0 (108 236)
Carrying amount at 31.12.2007 1 238 41 670 16 815 1186 2 818 63 727

RLclassificanon 0 2707 6 868 638 ‘1)) 21.3) 0
\ddiiions (I (I 1 566 641 9131 11258

1 )ispioals and wnic-i,ffs (Notts 21: 24) 0 (I 33) (liii; (13) (369)
l)epeeiation charge (\,,tes 16; 24 I) (2 493) (5 161) (663) I) (8317)
I ‘nrc alised currenes translation
difli.rcnecs I) (I 63 (29) 34

Cost at 31.12.2008 1 238 63 741 107 544 5 325 1 614 179 462

7 NAL
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Cost at 31.12.2009
Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2009
Carrying amount at 31.12.2009

I and Buildings and Machinery and
aciIitie5 equipment

0 (21 857) (87 511)
1238 41 884 20033

Other fixtures Construction- TOTAL
in-progress

0
1614

Cost at 31.12.2007
Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2007
Carrying amount at 3112.2007

Cost at 31.12.2008
Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2008
Carrying amount at 31.12.2008

Cost at 31.12.2009
Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2009
Carrying amount at 31.12.2009

I .and Buildings and
facilities

79 3901

Machinery and
equipment

6 533

C ‘000
TOTAL

10990

0 (6 917)
180 4 073

0

a.
(9 (9

w ,):( -: i(
6) -Q
U)

:(9 sQ
Hi3 : -

As at 31,12.2009, the cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use amounted to 87,131 thousand
kroons (5,569 thousand euros) and as at 31.12.2008, the respective amount was 79,229 kroons (5,064 thousand euros).

As at 31.12.2009, the carrying amount of non-current assets pledged as mortgages was 40,555 thousand kroons (2,592
thousand euros) and as at 31.12.2008, 43,122 thousand kroons (2,756 thousand euros). The remaining non-current
assets are part of the commercial pledge; see also Note 10.

Machinery and equipment include assets where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease in the carrying amount of
4,06’ thousand kroons (259 thousand euros) as at 31.12.2009 (2008: 1 419 thousand kroons, 90 thousand euros).

Construction-in-progress

As at 31.12.2009, construction-rn-progress includes the investment in production technology in the amount of 430
thousand kroons (2’ thousand euros), the investment in the renovation of buildings in the amount of l9 thousand
kroons (Il thousand euros), the investment in economics software in the amount of 252 thousand kroons (16
thousand euros) and the investment in other non-current assets in the amount of 23 thousand kroons (2 thousand
euros).

As at 31.12.2008, construction-in-progress includes the investment in production technology in the amount of 1,279
thousand kroons (82 thousand euros), the investment in economics software in the amount of 252 thousand kroons
(16 thousand euros) and the investment in other non-current assets in the amount of 83 thousand kroons (5 thousand
euros).

Accumulated depreciation at
31.12.2008
Carrying amount at 31.12.2008

Ree(assifie,ition
.\dditions
l)isposals and svnte-otfs (Notes 21; 24)
Depreciation charge (NoteS 16; 24)

nrealised currency translation
differences

43
33

(2 643)

1 238 63 817

1 671
3 850

(49(6))

(3 761)
1 564

31
88

(168)
(504)

(12)

(1 745)
1 056

(46)

D

(113 129)
66 333

0
5 027
(214)

(8 056)

(7)

0
1 238

(24 500)
39 317

112 551 4 483

(91 906)
20 645

(3 484)
999

884 182 973

0 (119 890)
884 63 083

Other fixtures Construction-
in-progress

297 180

Reclassification
Additions
1)isposa]s and svrite-offs (Notes 21: 24)
Depreciation charge (Notes 16; 24)
1:tir-.uised currency translation
differences

Reclassification
\dditi ins
l)isposals and vrite-offs (Notes 21; 24)
Depreciation charge (Notes 16: 24)
Unreahsed currency translation
differences

0 (1 238) (5 458) (221)
79 2663 1075 76

173 439 41 (653) 0
(1 109 42 577 719
0 (3) (20) (1) (24)

(159) (331) (41) 0 (531)

0 0 2 0 2

79 4 074 6 873 340 103 11 469

0 (1 397) (5 593) (240) 0 (7 230)
79 2 677 1 280 100 103 4 239

3 107 (112) 0
2 246 6 68 322
0 0 (10) (3) (13)

(169) (314) (33) 0 (516)

0 (1 (1) 0 (1)

79 4 079 7 193 287 56 11 694

0 (1 566) (5 874) (223) 0 (7 663)
79 2 513 1 319 64 56 4 031
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((K 7KM
5 193

(4973)
220

(199)

5 193
(5 172)

21

(7)

5 193
(5 179)

14

Intangible assets include computer software not directly linked to hardware.
recorded an the income statement line Cost of goods sold.

. Borrowings

C ‘000

332
(318)

14

(13)

332
(331)

(( ))

332
(331)

1

The amortisation of intangible assets is

Intangible assets

Cost at 31. 12.2007
Accumulated amortisation at 31.112007
Carrying amount at 31.12.2007

\morttsation charge (Note 24)

Cost at 31.12.2008
Accumulated amortisation at 31.12.2008
Carrying amount at 31.12.2008

\rn,rtisanon charge Note 24)

Cost at 31.12.2009
Accumulated amortisation at 31.12.2009
Carrying amount at 31.12.2009

Information regarding loans as at 31.12.2009:

Due date
lotal Within 1 rear 1 to 5 years 1-2 ea,s

ILK ‘000

2,66t 3s5 I’t ‘It -

6 month (LRlBOR+3.6° 16 548 3 008 13 540 6 018 7 522
830,851.43 (LR -

6 month F(RIBOR+2.2° s 11 950 1 800 10 150 10 150 0
479,337.36 (UR -

6 month (tIRIBOR+1.5°0 1 286 1 286 () 0 0
Finance lease 5.8% 214 114 100 100 0
lhnanee lease 5° o 263 109 154 114 40
Ihnanee lease 5.641°o 468 118 350 125 225
Finaiice lease 3 ((34 244 2 790 244 2 546
Overdraft 1 369 1 369 0 0 0

TOTAL 35 132 8 048 27 084 16 7.51 10333

Due date
Total Within 1 year I to 5 years 1-2 years 5-5 years

(‘‘000

2,660,000 FUR —

6 month FURIBOR+3.6°0 1 057 192 865 384 481
830,851.43 l’UR -

6 month I’URJ11OR+2.2° 764 115 649 649 0
479,337.36 FIR -

6 month l’T’RIBOR÷1.5°o 82 82 0 0 0
Finance lease 5.8” 14 7 7 7 0
(mince lease 5.3% 17 7 10 7 5
linanee lease 5.641’ 30 8 22 8 14
Finance lease 194 16 178 15 163
( )“erdraft 87 87 0 0 0

TOTAL 2 245 514 1 731 1 070 661

Information regarding loans as at 3 1.12.2008:

2661Hii( lCR -

6 m,nth F[RI1IOR-t-l,5°,
530 851.43 FUR-
6 month I ‘[It I B( )R-’-2.2°
4’9 337.36 FUR -

6 month I’S RI FR )R+ 1.5°
Finance lease 5.8°
Finance lease 5.3°,
Ftnanee lease 5.641°o
Overdraft

TOTAL

Due date
lotal Within 1 year 1-5 tears 1-2 (ear,’

19557 61(18 13539 6 Q17

13 5)0 1 05)) 11950 1800

3 857 2 571 1 286 1 286
321 107 214 114
366 103 263 109
579 111 468 118

7762 7762 0 0

45 442 17 722 27 720 9444

>,

I eIE,9 (55
=

so W

51
HcO

7

‘‘so.

so

-g
1 uti -= W•’,.=i

L1

I*K ‘000

3-7 year’

522

10 150

0
100
154
350

0
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Notes to the financial statements

‘I’he borrowings of AS Viisnurk have been secured as follows:

604 1168

• commercial pledge in the total amount of 35,000,000 kroons (2,236,902 euros);

• mortgage in the total amount of 80,374,900 kroons (5,136,892 euros).

Information regarding financial risks arising from borrowings is disclosed in Note 3. Information regarding the
carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for bank loans is disclosed in Notes 5, 6, 7 and 8.

J Operating lease

The Group is the lessee

4)

nIy

Due date
‘lotal Within I year 15 years 1 2 sean

C ‘000

35 sean
2 660 000 FL’R
6 month 1 ‘URIIIOR+ 1.5° 1 250 384 866

830 851.43 1’LR
6 nsonth OUR] BOR+2.2° 831 67 764
479 337.36 OUR
6 month LUR1BOR+1.5° 246 164 82

inance lease 5.8° 20 7 13
linance lease 5.3°o 24 7 17
linance lease 5.641’o 37 7 30
(herdraft 496 496 0

TOTAL 2 904 1 132 1 772

385

11,

82
7
7
8
()

481

649

0
6

10
22

0

In 2009 operating lease expenses amounted to 5,589 thousand kroons (357 thousand
thousand kroons (491 thousand euros).

Future lease payments under non cancellable operating leases:

euros) and in 2008, to 7,677

Machinery and Machinery and
equipment equipment

1.0K 000 ( ‘000
Store premises Store premises

ELK 000 ( 000

\t 31.12.20(19
1 years 946 61 842 54

beteen I and 5 years 819 52
TOTAL 1 765 113 842 54

\t 31.12.2(11)8
I ye irs 1 004 64 2 95(1 189

between I and 5 years 1 674 107
TOTAL 2 669 170 2 950 189

LE Payables and prepayments

2009
6 ‘000

2009 2008 2008
1119K ‘000 EEK ‘000 €‘ ‘000

Trade payables (Notes 3) 11336 26488 725 1693
Payables to employees (Note 3) 4 749 5 644 303 361
mel. accrued holiday pay resen e 2 279 2 202 146 141

pros ision for bonuses 485 905 31 58
Tax liabilities 3 580 4 174 229 267
md. social security and unemployment 2 256 2 648 144 169
insurance

personal income tax 969 I 294 62 83
contnbution to mandatory funded pension 12 88 1 6
valeie added tax 311 134 20 8
other taxes 32 10 2 1

Prepayments received 1 472 4 523 94 289
Other payables (Note 3) 1 605 2 817 103 180

TOTAL 22 742 43 646 1 454 2 790
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Provisions

LLK ‘000 ( bOO
Balance at 31.12.2007 3 200 205

mci. current portion of proision 264 17
iicL nomcurrent portion of provision 2936 188

Mocments in 2008:
Increase in reser\c 600 38
I Ne of reserve (414) (27)
Interesi cost (Note 22) 150 10

Balance at 31.12.2008 3 536 226
mci. current portion of provision 115 7
mci. nomeurrent portion of proision 3421 219

Nlos ements in 2009:
u of reser’.e (397) (25)

Interest cost Note 27) 277 18

Balance at 31.12.2009 3 421 219
mci. current portion of pnivision 118 8
mci. nomcurrent portion ofpnnision 3 303 211

Provisions as at 31122009 and 31.12.2008 related to the compensation for work accidents to former employees of AS
Viisnurk. The total amount of the provision has been estimated considering the number of persons receiving the
compensation, extent of their disability, their former salary level, level of pension payments, and estimations of the
remaining period of payments. See also Note 4.

Equity

Share capital

Number of shares (pcs) Share capital Share capital
LLK ‘000 C ‘000

Balance at 31.12.20)19 4499 061 44991 2875
Balance at 31.12,2008 44991)61 44991 2875

As at 31.12.2009 and 31.12.2008, the share capital of AS Viisnurk amounted to 44,991 thousand kroons (2,875
thousand euros). The share capital consists of 4,499,061 (2008: 4,499,061) issued, authorised and fully paid ordinary
shares with the norramal value of 10 kroons (0.64 euros) each (2008: 10 kroons (0.64 euros)). According to the articles
of association, the maximum amount of share capital is 177,481 thousand kroons (11,343 thousand euros). Each
ordinary share grants its owner one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders and the right to receive dividends.

In 2009, no dividends were paid to shareholders.

In 2008, the Group paid dividends to the shareholders in the amount of 6,299 thousand kroons (403 thousand euros),
i.e. 1.40 kroons (8.94 euro cents) per share. The corresponding income tax on dividends was 1,674 thousand kroons
(107 thousand euros) (Note 23).

\s at 31.12.2009, the Group had 543 shareholders (31.12.2008: 443 shareholders) of which with more than 5°
ownership interest were:

• 1’rigon Wood OCT with 2,682,192 shares or 59.62° o (2008: 59.62° a)

• ING Luxembourg S.A. with 500,000 shares or 11.11° o (2008: 11.11%)

The number of shares owned by the members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board of AS Viisnurk was as
follows:

• Ulo Adamson: 0 shares (2008: 0 shares)

Joakim Johan Helenius: 20,000 shares (2008: 20,000 shares)

I{eiti Riisberg: 0 shares (2008: 0 shares) 1, *

• Andres Kivistik: 0 shares (2008: 0 shares)

a Einar Pkhkel: 0 shares (2008: 0 shares) u
€1
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Notes to the financial statements

Contingent income tax liability

As at 31 December 2009, the retained earnings amounted to 15,914 thousand kroons (1,017 thousand euros). The
following is taken into consideration with regard to available equity:

• as at the balance sheet date, it is possible to pay out 12,572 thousand kroons (803 thousand euros) as dividends;
• the corporate income tax on the aforementioned dividends would amount to 3,342 thousand kroons (214

thousand euros).

As at 31 December 2008, retained earnings amounted to 15,759 thousand kroons (1,007 thousand euros). The

following is taken into consideration with regard to available equity:

• as at the balance sheet date, it is possible to pay out 12,450 thousand kroons (796 thousand euros) as dividends;
• the corporate income tax on the aforementioned dividends would amount to 3,309 thousand kroons (211

thousand euros).

The maximum potential income tax liability is calculated under the assumption that the distributable net dividends and
the amount of the income tax expense on dividends cannot exceed the distributable retained earnings as at the balance
sheet date.

According to the Income Tax Act, the Group is entitled to reduce the income tax payable on dividends to the extent of
income tax withheld in subsidiary in Ukraine on interest expense, in the amount of 69 thousand kroons /4 thousand
euros in 2009 (2008: 0 kroons.

Earnings per share

2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK I±K C I

Basic earnings per share (bPS) 0,03 1,34 0,00 0,09
I )iluted earnings per share 0,03 1,34 0,00 0,09
Book value of share 15,89 15,83 1,02 1,01
Price/earnings ratio (P/1 375,67 9,10 375,67 9,11)

losing price of the share of \S Viisnurk on the
1 ilhnn Stock Ochange as at 31.12. 11,27 12,20 0,72 0,78

The share of AS Viisnurk is listed on the Tallinn Stock Exchange from 25.09.2007 (Notes 1; 2)

Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the net profit for the reporting period by the number of shares:

TiPS in 2009 = 154,640/4,499,061 = 0.03 kroons / 0.002 euros

liPS in 2008 6 042 052/4 499 061 = 1.34 kroons / 0.09 euros

In 2009 and 200$, the diluted earnings per share equal the basic earnings per share because the Group does not have
any potential ordinary shares with a dilutive effect on the earnings per share.

Price/earnings ratio (P/E) in 2009 = 11.27 / 0.03 = 375.67

Price/earnings ratio (P/E) in 200$ = 12.20 / 1.34 = 9.10

Cost of goods sold )

2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK ‘000 EEK ‘000 6 ‘000 6 ‘000

restated restated
Raw rnaterials and rnain rnatenals 67662 119 11)) 4324 7 613
Irnploec benefits 36886 53986 2357 3450
I leetneitv and heat 24013 35 197 1 535 2 251)
I)epreciation 6 993 7 933 447 507
Purchased goods 1 202 992 77 63

hinge in balances of finished goods and work 19 139 (10 256) 1 223 (656)
iii progress
Other expenses 7442 10685 476 683

TOTAL 163 337 217 647 10439 13 910
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Distribution costs

Notes to the financial statements

L Administrative expenses

2009 2008
EEK ‘000 EEK ‘000

restated
5 495

222
327
916

2008
6 ‘000
restated

TOTAL 5462 6960 349 445

Employee benefits

In 2009, the average number of employees of AS Viisnurk was 326 (2008: 350).

In 2009, the gross remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board totalled 2,225 thousand kroons (142
thousand euros) and in 2008, 2,640 thousand kroons (169 thousand euros). Pursuant to the contracts concluded, as at
31.12.2009, the members of the Management Board are entitled upon termination of management board member
agreements by the initiative of Supervisory Board to receive severance pay amounting to up to four-month
remuneration and as at 31.12.2008, severance pay amounting to two-month remuneration.

Other operating income

2009 2008 2009 2008
EBK ‘000 EEK ‘000 6 ‘000 6 ‘000

Insurance indemnities 0 115 (1 7
Penalties and fines for delay received 0 370 0 24
Income from export marketing grant5 306 135 20 9
Other income 226 70 14 4

TOTAL 532
Export marketing grant was received from Enterprise

0 1.07.2008 and it is valid until 30.04.2010.

c V

O O1&A

c r TIl r

2009 2008 2009 2008
lEEK ‘000 EEK V00 6 ‘000 6 ‘000

Fransportation expenses 6 782 8 675 434 554
Imployee benefits 8466 9 603 541 614
\d ertising costs 3 182 4 424 203 283
\gency fees 2 677 3 928 171 251
Rental expenses 4 892 6 795 313 434
Other expenses 7 434 8 827 475 564

TOTAL 33 433 42 252 2137 2 700

I mployei. benefits 4 430
Purchased ser ices 305
Office supplies 364
Other expenses 363

2009
6 ‘000

283 351
20 14
23 21
23 59

2009 2008 2009 2008
lEEK ‘000 lEEK ‘000 € ‘000 6 ‘000

Wages and salaries 34497 46813 2 205 2 992
mel. social securit) and unemployment 12 456 15 496 796 990
insurance
\ccnied holiday pay provision 2 442 5 577 156 357
Iringe benefits paid to employees 387 1 064 25 68

TOTAL 49 782 68 950 3 182 4 407

690 34 44
Estonia. The export marketing project was launched at
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Notes to the financial_statements

Other operating expenses

2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK 000 EEK ‘000 € ‘000 € 000

\llowance for doubtful recen ables (Note 5) 418 339 26 22
Insurance loss 0 13 0 1
loreign exchange loss 483 2287 31 146
Contract fees 72 124 5 8
Reclamations 14 82 1 5
loss from sale ot non-current assets (Notes 8; 0 79 0 5
24
Pen ilties and fines for dcla paid 35 25 2 2
Other costs 291 239 19 15

TOTAL 1 313 3 188 84 204

Finance income and costs

2009 2008 2009 2008
BEK ‘000 EEK ‘000 6 ‘000 € ‘000

I mane miscue:

Interest income 9 32 1
Other finance income 0 5 0

Total finance income 9 37 1 2

I man e is its:

Interest expenses 2512 3 348 161 214
mel. interest expense related to provision (Note 277 150 18 1(1

13
loreign exchange loss 50 143 3 9

Total finance costs 2562 3 491 164 223

See also Note 24.

Income tax expense

2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK ‘000 EEK 000 6 ‘000 000

Income ta\ expense (Note 14)* 69 1 674 4 107

TOTAL 69 1674 4 107

The income tax expense for 2009 comprises the income tax withheld on interest payable by TQV Skano Ukraina.
The income tax expense for 2008 comprises the income tax payable on dividends (Note 14).

Adjustments of profit before tax in the cash flow statement

2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK ‘000 EEK 000 6000 6000

Depreciation charge (Notes 8; 9) 8075 8 516 516 544
Loss from sale of non ceirrent assets (Note 21) 0 79 0 5
Interest expenses (Note 22) 2 512 3 348 160 214
lncrease)/dccrease in receivables and

prepauments (Note 5) 757 10 629 48 680
lncrease)/decrcase in im entories (Note 6) 26 184 (13 354 1 673 (853)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities related to
operating actnities (21 019) 6 157 (1 343 393

Total adjustments 16 509 15 375 1054 983

Segment reporting

Operating segments have been determined based on the reports reviewed by the management board that are used to
make strategic decision. The management board considers the business based on the types of products and services as
follows:
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Fnrniture //icto?y ‘FI9 is engaged in the production and wholesales of household furniture. The factory is located in
Estonia.

Skano (VI) is engaged in retail sales of furniture in Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania and Ukraine.

Bmldin materials div/sian (‘BMD,) manufactures and sells to wholesale customers general construction boards based on
soft woodfibre boards, and interior finishing boards. The fibreboard factory is located in Estonia.

The management board assesses the performance of operating segments based on revenue as primary measure. As a

secondary measure, the management board also reviews operating profit.

All amounts provided to the management board are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial
statements. Inter-segment sales are carried out at arm’s length.

Snfoation foratingments: —

_____________ _____________

Building materials . . . SEGMENTS
EEK 000 Furniture factory Skano . . . Eliminations

division TOTAL

_______________________

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Res enue from cstcrnal
customers 92528 124 298 32895 4() 064 80367 116 165 0 0 205 790 280 527

Inter segment revenue 14614 20 362 0 0 209 0 0 0 14823 20362
Resenue trom customers
who contribute more than
10° of consolidated
resenue: 75091 96482 0 0 0 0 0 0 75091 96482

bent 1 51 750 58152 0 0 0 0 0 0 51750 58152
bent 2 23341 38330 0 0 0 0 0 0 23341 38330

()peratmg protit/loss 6 870 7 743 (5 334 (5 161) 1 224 8671 17 (83) 2777 11170
\mortisation/depreciation 2 807 3 900 338 508 4930 4 108 0 0 8075 8 516

Segment assets 64 463 76 565 11 305 17768 57 544 70 016 (509) (525) 132 803 163 824
Segment liabilities 28 330 41)010 2951 4 250 30014 48 364 0 () 61295 92 624
\dditiims to non-current
issets 290 4 824 33 1 214 4704 5 220 0 0 5027 11258

Building materials . . . SEGMENTS
000 Furniture factory Skano . . . Eliminations

______________ ________________

division

________________

TOTAL

_______________________

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Res enue from e\temal
customers 5914 7 944 2 102 2 561 5 136 7424 0 0 13132 17929
Inter seisment resenue 934 1 301 0 1) 14 0 0 0 948 1301
Res enue from clients who
contribute more than 10°
of consolidated revenue: 4799 6 166 0 0 0 (1 0 0 4799 6166
Client I 3 307 3 716 0 1) 0 1) () () 3307 3716
Client 2 1 492 2 450 0 1) 0 0 0 () 1492 2 450
Operatingprofit/loss 439 495 (341) (330) 78 554 1 (5 177 714
\mortisation/depreciation 179 249 22 32 315 263 0 0 516 544

Segment assets 4 120 4 893 722 1135 3 678 4 474 (32) (34 8488 10 468
Segment liabilities 1 811 2557 189 272 1 918 31)91 0 0 3918 5920
\eiditions to non current

assets 19 308

____________

— - 301 333 0 1) 322 719

Eliminations compnse unrealised profits on inventories arising from inter-segment transactions.

Investment property and inventories relating to real estate development are allocated within building materials division
in accordance with the allocation in the internal reports. Insignificant expenses related to these properties are also
included within building materials division.

N
c cq. c
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Revenues from external customers according to their location:

(IA 3)00
2009 2008

FF SK BMD TOTAL FF SK BMD TOTAL

Iinltnd 51 787 1) 36 866 88 653 58 310 0 58 943 117 253

Russia 34 050 1) 5 169 39 219 57 231 0 6 036 63 267

I stona 1 231 9 608 26 961 37 800 1 767 13 962 37 381 53 110

I kraine 0 10 506 245 10 751 0 8 374 2 457 10 831

1.tt’ot 0 4 807 2 123 6 930 0 9 214 2 812 12 026
lath an1a 0 7 974 334 8 308 0 8 514 602 9 116
Portugal 0 0 2 140 2 140 0 0 954 954
Germant I 444 0 856 2 300 2 775 0 1 187 3 962
Kazaklv4an 3 476 0 0 3 476 3 998 0 0 3 998
Suden 0 0 4047 4047 0 0 5 ((44 5 044
Be I russia 208 0 0 208 0 0 0 0
Others 332 0 1 626 1 958 217 0 749 966
TOTAL 92 528 32 895 80 367 205 790 124 298 40 064 116 165 280 527

( 3)93) 2009 2008
FF SK BMD TOTAL FF SK BMD TOTAL

I mlutd 3 310 (1 2 356 5 666 3 727 0 3 767 7 494
Russia 2 176 (1 330 2 506 3 658 0 386 4 044
I stoma 80 614 1 723 2 417 113 892 2 389 3 394
I kraine 1) 671 15 686 1) 535 157 692
litsia 0 307 136 443 (1 589 180 769
lathuania 0 510 21 531 (1 545 38 583
Portugal (1 (1 137 137 1) (1 61 61
(hnnany 92 1) 55 147 177 1) 76 253
K i;akhst in 222 (I 0 222 255 II 0 255
Su eden 0 3) 259 259 () 0 322 322
1k lorussia 13 0 () 13 1) 0 () 0
( )thers 21 1) 104 125 14 1) 48 62
TOTAL 5 914 2 102 5 136 13 152 7 944 2 561 7 424 17 929

Revenue is generated from sales of own production and goods purchased for resale.

Majority of the Group’s assets are located in Estonia (95° o as at 31.12.2009, 92° o as at 31.12.2008).

Related party transactions

1he following parties are considered as related parties:
• Parent OCT Trigon Wood and owners of the parent (md. ultimate controlling party TDI Investments KY

until November 2009);
• Other entities in the same consohdation group
• Members of the Management, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of AS \Tiisnurk Group

entities and their close relatives;
• Entities under the control of the members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board;

• Individuals with significant ownership unless these individuals lack the opportunity to exert significant
influence over the business decisions of the Group.

-ks at 31.12.2009, the entities with significant influence over the Group are the largest owners of OU Trigon Wood: AS
‘Irigon Capital (20.75° , Veikko Lame Oy (15.52° ), BCB Baltic AB (14.07° o), Hermitage Eesti Oi (11.94° ),
Thominvest Oy (11.94° ) and Assetman Oy (11.45° ).

‘lEe remuneration paid to the members of the Management and Supervisory Board including taxes:
2009 2008 2009 2008

EEK ‘000 EEK ‘000 6’ ‘000 6’ ‘000
Board member and other remuneration (Note 19) 2 225 2 640 142 169
Social security tax (Note 19) 735 871 47 56

TOTAL 2960 3 511 189 225

The termination benefits of the Management Board are disclosed in Note 19.

In 2009 and 2008, there were no other related party transactions.
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Contingent liabilities

The tax authorities may at any time inspect the books and records within 6 years subsequent to the reported tax year,
and upon establishing errors, may impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The Group’s management is not
aware of any circumstances which may give rise to a potential material liability in this respect.

Supplementary disclosures on the Group’s parent

In accordance with the Estonian Accounting Act, information on the separate primary financial statements of the
consolidating entity (pages 50-52) is to be disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The separate
financial statements have been prepared using the same accounting policies as for the consolidated financial
statements, except for measurement of investment in subsidiaries, which in separate financial statements are reported
at cost (less any impairment losses).

Statement of financial position of the parent company

31.12.2009 31.12.2009
EEK ‘000 6 ‘000

3664 234 232
32339 2 61)7 2 103
35677 228)) 3767

71660 95471 4581 6102

120 Do 8 8
2893 2517 185 185

62406 65153 3988 4164

65419 68 166 4 181 4 357

163 637 8762 10 459

8048 17722 514 1133
19 791 3.? 307 1 265 2 518

118 III 8 7

Total current liabilities 27 957

l.ong-term borrowings 27084
Long-terni provisionS 3 303
Total non-current liabilities 30387
Total liabilities

58344
Share capital at nominal value

Share premium 44991
Statutory reserve capital 5 698
Retained earnings 4 499

23567
Total equity

78755
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Total non-current assets

31.12.2009
6 ‘000

11997
948

Cost of goods sold (160 663) (220 456) (10 268) (14 090)

Gross profit 27056 40 368 1 729 2 580

Distribution costs (12 827) (18 924. 82u (1 209)
Administrative expenses (5462) (5 112, (319 (327)
Other operating income 151 071 1)) 62

31.12.2008
EEK ‘000

3 633
32 898
58 940

31.12.2008

6 ‘000
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and prepayments
Inventories

Total current assets

Investments of subsidiaries
1 nvestment property
Property, plant and equipment

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Borrowings
Payables and prepayments
Sh iroterrn provisions

137 099

57234 1787 3658

27 70 1 731 1 772
3421 ‘11 219

31 141 1 942 1 991

88 375 3 729 5 649

44991 2875 2875
5 698 364 364
4499 288 288

70 074 1 506 1 283

75 262 5 033 4 810

137 099 163 637 8 762 10 459

Statement of comprehensive income of the parent company
31.12.2009 31.12.2008
EEK ‘000 EEK ‘000

REVENUE 187 719 260 824
md. to subsidiaries 14823 20 362

1:
0

U) “-‘

E, •Qs1l

;(.)

()

0

A
6)

2)•

Ti Ti
ti C’,

ii
07

07

31.12.2008
6 ‘000

16 670
1 301
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31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31,12,2009 31.12.2008
BEK ‘000 EEK ‘000 € ‘000 6 ‘000

Other operating expenses (3133) (888) (201) (57)

Operating profit 5785 16 415 369 1049

linance income and costs - net (2297) (3 182,) (146 (203)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3493 13233 223 846

Corporate income ta\ 0 (1 674) 0 (107)

NET PROFIT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 3493 11559 223 739
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 3493 11559 223 739
THE YEAR

Cash flow statement of the parent company
2009 2008 2009 2008

EEK ‘000 EEK ‘000 6 ‘000 6 ‘000
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 3 493 13 233 223 846

\djustiients:
Depreciation 7742 8010 495 512
Loss from sale of non current assets 0 79 0 5
Loss from impairment of trade recei\ables 2550 225 163 15
Interest expenses 2512 3 348 160 214
lnterrst income (269) 0 (17) 0

lncrease/decreasc in receivables and (2199) 1 276 (140 81
prepavments
Inerease/decrease in Imentones 23263 (10 134 1 486 (648

Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities related (19 901 5 546 (1 277) 354
to operating activities

Cash generated from operations 17 191 21 583 1098 1 379
Interest payments (2512) (3 348 (160) (214
Corporate income tax paid 0 (1 674) 0 (11)7)

Net cash generated from operating activities 14679 16 561 938 1058

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1 329 (If> 029) 85 (641)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and 0 182 0 12
equipment
Interest received 269 55 17 3

Net cash generated from investing activities (1060) (9 792) (68) (626)

Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings 0 9 137 0 584
Repayments of borrowings (13 027) (8 589) (832) (549
I’inance e lease payments (566 (622) 36 (39
Distnbution of dividends 0 (6 299) 0 (403)

Net cash used in financing activities (13 588) (6373) (868) (407)

NET CHANGE IN CASH BALANCE 31 396 2 25
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH 3633 3237 232 207
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH 3664 3633 234 232

I ony

I I rr
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Statement of changes in equity of the parent company
LLK ‘000

Share
premium

Statutors
reserve capital

Retained eamings/
(accumulated

deficitlShare capital Total

Balance as at 31.12.2007 44 991 5 698 4 499 14 815 70 003
( amount of investments under
control and significant influence (120)
\ alue of ins estments under control
and significant influence under equity
method 1 360
Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2007 71 243

Balance at 31.12.2007 44 991 5 698 4 499 14 815 70 003
1 otal comprehensive income for 2008 1) 0 0 1 1 559 11 559
Pament of dO idends 0 0 0 (6 300) (6 300)
Balance at 31.12.2008 44 991 5 698 4 499 20 074 75 262
C arrying amount of investments under
control and significant influence (120)
\ clue of ins estments under control
and significant influence under equity
method (3 942)
Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12,2008 71 200

Balance at 31.12.2008 44 991 5 698 4 499 20 074 75 262
1 istal comprehensis c income for 21>09 0 0 0 3 493 3 493
Balance at 31.12.2009 44 991 5 698 4 499 23 567 78 755
( arrs ing amount 0f mi estrncnts under
control and significant influence (120)
\ clue of investments under control
and significant influence under cquitt
method (7127)
Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2009 71 508

11 ‘000 Retained earnings!
Share Statutory (accumulated

Share capital premium reserve capital deficit) Total

Balance as at 31.12.2007 2 875 364 288 947 4 474
C ‘arry ing amoeint of ins estments under
control and significant influence (8)
V due of ins e stments under control
and significant influence under equity
metlam >d 87
Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2007 4 553

Balance at 31.12.2007 2 875 364 288 947 4 474
lotal eomprchensise income fir 2008 0 0 (1 739 739
Payment of dividends 0 0 1) (403) (403)
Balance at 31.12.2008 2 875 364 288 1 283 4 810
Carrying amount of investments under
control and significant influence (8)
\ alue of investments under control
and significant influence under equity
naethod (254)
Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2008 4 548

Balance at 31.12.2008 2 875 364 288 1 283 4 810
1 otal comprehensive income for 21>09 (1 I) 1) 223 223
Balance at 31.12.2009 2 875 364 288 1 506 5 033
Carrying amount of ins cstments under
control and significant influence (8)
\ alue ot investments emder control
and significant influence under equity
mm thou (455)
Adjusted unconsolidated equity at
31.12.2009 4 570
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Translation of the Estonian original)*

To the Shareholders of AS Viisnurk

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AS Viisnurk and its
subsidiaries (the Group) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
31 December 2009 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2009, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union.

—- ——

Ago Vilu Erki Magi
AS PricewaterhouseCoopers Authorised Auditor

7 April 2010

*

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Estonian. All
possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the
original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original
language version of our report takes precedence over this translation.
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Profit aVocation proposal

The retained earnings of AS Viisnurk are:

EEKVOO i2OQ
Retained earnings at 31.12.2008 15 759 1 007
Net prnfit in 2009 155 10
Retained earnings at 31.12.2009 15 914 1 017

The Management Board proposes to the shareholders not to allocate the retained earnings.

/

V
Andres Kivistik Einar Pähkel

Chairman of the Management board Member of the Management Board
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Revenue of the parent according to EMTAK

2009 2008 2009 2008
EEK yOU HEK ‘000 K ‘000 ‘0000

31091 manufacture of other
furniture 107 142 144 660 6 848 9 245

16212 manufacture of particle
boards and fibreboards 80576 116 165 5 150 7 424
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